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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone.  I'd like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5                 If you haven't signed up to speak,

          6  please do so by seeing the Sergeant at Arms in the

          7  back.  Fill out a speaker slip. Please indicate the

          8  item you're speaking on and whether you're in favor

          9  or in opposition.

         10                 I am going to be taking two matters

         11  out of order.  We're going to be doing the two

         12  sidewalk cafe issues first and then we will be

         13  having the public hearing on the Harlem Hotel,

         14  Harlem Park Issue.

         15                 Joining me this morning are members

         16  of the Committee.  Council Members Mike McMahon,

         17  Christine Quinn, Melinda Katz and Al Vann and also

         18  joining us is Council Member Bill Perkins.

         19  If I can have quiet please.

         20                 If people can find a seat.  If you

         21  have to have a conversation, please take it outside.

         22                 First item we'll be hearing is Land

         23  Use #282-20045643TCM.  An application by 999

         24  Restaurant Corporation to establish, maintain and

         25  operate an unenclosed, small sidewalk cafe located
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          2  at 696 Madison Avenue.

          3                 We have two people representing the

          4  applicant, Dominic Barbara and Ronald Rosenberg.

          5                 MR. ROSENBERG:  Good morning.  I want

          6  to thank the Committee for its consideration this

          7  morning.  I'm here representing Nello Ballan who is

          8  the owner of 999 Restaurant Corp. Which does

          9  business as Nello's Restaurant.  Mr. Ballan's been a

         10  neighbor and a resident --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I'm not sure, I

         12  hate to interrupt but please introduce yourself for

         13  the record.  It's being taped.

         14                 MR. ROSENBERG:  Oh, I'm sorry.  Okay.

         15    My name is Ronald J. Rosenberg.  I'm from the Law

         16  Firm of Rosenberg, Calica and Birney, LLP.  I'm up-

         17  counsel to the Law Offices of Dominic A. Barbara.  I

         18  represent Nello Ballan and 999 Restaurant Corp.

         19  Which does business as Nello's Restaurant.  That's

         20  located at 692 Madison Avenue.  We're here in

         21  regards to the application for an unenclosed

         22  sidewalk cafe.  It's in zone one.  As the

         23  application was filed in April, the application has

         24  been found to be in full and complete compliance

         25  with all applicable rules and regulations by the
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          2  Department of Consumer Affairs as evidenced by the

          3  letter dated September 17th, 2004.  I'd like to

          4  speak a little bit about the applicant.  The

          5  applicant's restaurant is a world- renowned

          6  restaurant.  It's got the highest restaurant ratings

          7  by the various restaurant reviewers and agencies

          8  such as Aggat's (phonetic).  It is frequented by

          9  many known celebrities.  It's a attribute to the

         10  community.  It's an attribute to New York City and

         11  to permit it to have this attractive, sidewalk,

         12  unenclosed sidewalk cafe would also add to the

         13  community.  It will add to the community both in

         14  terms of appearance.  It will add to the community

         15  both in terms of adding more employment.  Help the

         16  economy and further the goals of why this Council

         17  passed the sidewalk cafe law six months ago.  I have

         18  a small brief that I prepared that I'd like to hand

         19  up which just indicates that proper land use

         20  consideration should involve the actual use that the

         21  land's going to be put to, not the identity of the

         22  users.  As I understand it, the opposition of the

         23  Community Board 8, as evidenced by a letter dated

         24  July 15th, 2004, I believe is not only unfounded but

         25  is off the mark and not relevant to the
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          2  consideration before this honorable Board.  The sole

          3  basis for their opposition is the unfounded charge

          4  that the, my client, has violated the sidewalk cafe

          5  laws as far back as the 1990s.  That is an untrue

          6  statement.  My client took over the restaurant in

          7  the '90s and at the time he took over the restaurant

          8  there was a sidewalk cafe.  He was unaware that

          9  there was a legal requirement for a permit.  When he

         10  was cited for that violation in 1998, he immediately

         11  complied with the law and has not been cited since

         12  that.  That's six years ago.  Okay.  Any allegations

         13  that there's been violations since then should be

         14  rejected wholly by this honorable Board.  In our

         15  legal system, we have three branches of government.

         16  The executive, the judicial and the legislative.  Of

         17  course, you're acting in the legislative capacity.

         18  If there was charges to be brought against him, they

         19  should have been, summons should have been issued

         20  and he would have had his day in court to be able to

         21  defend himself.  To have anyone consider unfounded

         22  charges now before this Committee, which is not set

         23  up as a judicial body, I think, is an irrelevant

         24  consideration.  The considerations before this Board

         25  that should be properly considered is what's the
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          2  best interest of the neighborhood and the community

          3  and having this sidewalk cafe will be in the best

          4  interest of this neighborhood and community.  My

          5  client is committed.  He runs a first class

          6  establishment.  It is world renowned.  He informed

          7  me this morning, in fact, that Double Decker Tour

          8  Buses stop often. People take pictures in front of

          9  the world famous Nello's Restaurant.  It is

         10  something that New York City should be proud of and

         11  in this tough economic times, we should be

         12  encouraging economic activity and not discouraging

         13  it.

         14                 He also assures me, and I assure this

         15  Board on his behalf, that he will work closely with

         16  the community, with the Community Board, with this

         17  Committee, with the City Council if ever a problem

         18  should arise in any respect, he's in the service

         19  business.  The customer is never wrong.  He will

         20  work his best to work with whatever complaint could

         21  arise although we anticipate none.  We're talking

         22  about three tables.  I think that this is, what I

         23  hate to say 'cause I don't want to jinx myself, but

         24  this is a no- brainer application.  Around the

         25  corner, I might add, a restaurant by the name of
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          2  Amaranth at 21 East 62nd Street also has a sidewalk

          3  cafe.  This is consistent with the neighborhood.

          4  This will add to the neighborhood.  This will be a

          5  benefit to the neighborhood and the opposition is

          6  really not relevant to the application.  I don't

          7  understand the motivation other than they want to

          8  punish my client for a violation that occurred six

          9  years ago.  I'm sorry that they cannot forgive

         10  something that's six years old and any allegations

         11  about a violation since then, as I mentioned before,

         12  should not even be considered because it's not

         13  proper.  It's not a proper place for it and my

         14  client vehemently denies it and so I would suggest

         15  and I would hope that this court, sorry, I'm usually

         16  in court, that this honorable Committee, Sub

         17  committee, pass this application in all respects and

         18  I can assure you that you'll never hear a complaint

         19  about the operation of my client's restaurant or

         20  it's sidewalk cafe and that it'll be operated in a

         21  way that New York City will be proud and will

         22  benefit all of us.

         23                 My co- counsel just wanted me to

         24  remind me point out that when this law was passed, I

         25  believe it was six months ago which allowed this
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          2  area of Manhattan to have sidewalk cafes.  There was

          3  no opposition by the same Community Council 8 and in

          4  fact, they tried to get passed as I understand it,

          5  Community Board 8 I'm sorry, and as I understand it,

          6  they tried to have the City Council pass a law which

          7  I believe would have been ultravirus (phonetic)

          8  which was that part of the application process

          9  should consider the past conduct of the application

         10  and the City Council wisely chose not to include

         11  that in the law and they should not be allowed to do

         12  an end run around with what the City Council has

         13  already voted as the law and as my memorandum of law

         14  and I apologize, I did this in one day, I am not

         15  trying to be adversarial in any way, I just want to

         16  point out that the proper consideration in land use

         17  applications is the use of the land and not the

         18  identity of the user and therefore any arguments

         19  about the particular user, in this case, my client

         20  which we reject by the way, we believe he's a man

         21  who has impeccable reputation, an outstanding

         22  reputation.

         23                 The restaurant, I think the main

         24  complaint I've heard about the restaurant and I,

         25  myself, was included in that was getting
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          2  reservations there.  It is a attribute to this City

          3  and to this Community and I would hope that the

          4  Council would vote and approve this application as

          5  it is in all respects compliant with the applicable

          6  regulations as found by the Department of Consumer

          7  Affairs on September 17th, 2004.

          8                      MR. BARBARA: Thank you.  My name

          9  is Dominic Barbara.  I'm an attorney for 35 years.

         10  I practice above Manhattan and I have offices in

         11  Garden City.  I'm actually here as Nello's friend.

         12  I'm a litigator so I'm used to speaking in a court

         13  room.

         14                 This is the first time I've ever

         15  appeared in front of a committee like this.  I want

         16  to thank you.  My main purpose for being here is to

         17  just say about Nello is that he's a man who has come

         18  to this country and worked very hard and he promises

         19  that if you allow this to occur, he will comply with

         20  all rules and regulations and if there's ever a

         21  problem, at all, if there's a flower in the wrong

         22  place, Nello will solve that within five minutes.

         23  We're good neighbors.

         24                 We want to continue to be good

         25  neighbors and we want to keep all the people working

                                                            12

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  in that restaurant that need jobs and to help pay

          3  taxes and we help pay sales tax which helps pay I

          4  guess part of the cost of this place.  We promise

          5  you to continue in the direction we have.

          6                 Thank you.  And Nello said, would you

          7  like to say anything?

          8                 MR. NELLO BALLAN: (Difficult to

          9  discern due to dialect in language) I hope -- Nello

         10  Ballan of Nello's Restaurant, and I want to thank

         11  you for allowing us to come in front of you to

         12  present our case and I will appreciate if you

         13  consider in positive way, manner our application.

         14  Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I have one

         16  question and then Council Member Katz has a

         17  question.  Staff has been out to the location and

         18  they've noticed that there are planters in front of

         19  the restaurant which are actually on City owned

         20  property and which you don't have permission for.

         21  What do you intend to do about that?

         22                 MR. ROSENBERG:  We intend to remove

         23  those planters. Just a perfect example, they won't

         24  be there today if you check today.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.  Council
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          2  Member Katz.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I am a little

          4  taken back by the civic lesson and although I

          5  appreciate it, I just have a few questions.

          6                 MR. ROSENBERG:  I apologize for the

          7  civic lesson.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: That's alright.

          9  I appreciate it.  I'm a professor myself.  Anytime

         10  you want to join my class, I'm happy to have you.

         11                 MR. BARBARA: I'd be happy to go.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.  You

         13  all take.  I've a very quick question.  The

         14  Community Board vote was six to zero in a

         15  disapproval.  Do you have any comments on why or how

         16  that happened?  Did you go to the Community Board?

         17  I assume it was a committee since it's a low number.

         18                 MR. ROSENBERG: As I understand it

         19  from Mr. Ballan, he sent his manager to the

         20  Community Board and the architect.  His manager and

         21  the architect went to the Community Board but if you

         22  look at the resolution of July 15th--

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So you went to

         24  the Community Board and you testified in front of

         25  the whole board or the committee?

                                                            14

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 MR. ROSENBERG: I did not, no.  No

          3  attorneys went. Mr. Ballan's manager and his

          4  architect went.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.  Has there

          6  been a history with the Board that --

          7                 MR. ROSENBERG: Could I have a moment

          8  to speak with my client?  No history that he knows

          9  of at all.  He has no reason- he's actually baffled

         10  about the opposition by the Community Board.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right, I

         12  mean I guess the reason I'm asking about the

         13  Community Board and I know they're going to testify.

         14    I did not know that so I apologize is that you

         15  said that the customers are always right but the

         16  customers are sometimes not the community.  I mean

         17  sometimes, you know, customers do come in especially

         18  in that outer borough of Manhattan, come in from

         19  other areas that to eat a restaurant so I was just

         20  curious as to how the community felt and if you had

         21  any explanation for them-

         22                 MR. BARBARA: I think the issue first

         23  of all, in talking to the community, yes, many of

         24  the neighbors in the area eat in the restaurant

         25  often but that's not really what we meant by
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          2  community.  We meant, by community, the community of

          3  the City of New York and what it is is a restaurant

          4  for all of us.  It's something that we're proud of.

          5  It's something that even a professor would be

          6  enjoyable going there and it's certainly a place,

          7  it's certainly a place that we care what we show to

          8  the community around us.  We've never had an

          9  argument.  We've never had a fight.  We've never had

         10  a disagreement.  We've never had a complaint with

         11  the community.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I understand

         13  that.  I guess, I know I understand you're talking

         14  of city wide perspective when we do these sidewalk

         15  applications.  It's truly the community around it is

         16  what's going to be the most affected by a sidewalk--

         17  I'm in Forest Hills, Queens, I could come in and eat

         18  at this restaurant but I'm not the one who has to

         19  deal with it tomorrow night or the next night.  I

         20  was really wondering because knowing the Community

         21  Board is coming, if you had explanations or comments

         22  on the vote.

         23                 MR. BARBARA: Well, I think what's

         24  relevant about you coming from Forest Hills and

         25  eating there, yes, that's for you to enjoy.
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          2  However. We would make sure that neighbors across

          3  the street, on the side, which is all commercial by

          4  the way, would not in any way be negatively affected

          5  nor would the traffic that's walking on the street

          6  which would be you, a visitor also.  I can't picture

          7  anything that's upsetting this community and I

          8  thought was very interesting if you look at their

          9  resolution, I apologize for not knowing how the

         10  process works.  I am a litigator mostly in divorce

         11  law so, but in seeing--

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Leave your

         13  card.

         14                 MR. BARBARA:-- I can offer you a free

         15  divorce because this is-- policy.  But in terms of

         16  what we deal with, with the people in the community,

         17  no one's come in and said we complain about this or

         18  that and Nello would respond to their needs.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.  I thank

         20  you for your time.  I don't mean to make it larger

         21  issue and the Community Board will talk to us and

         22  we'll be able to get their perspective.

         23                 MR. ROSENBERG: I just want to follow

         24  up on one thing if I could which is, I wasn't just

         25  speaking to the greater community only.  I was
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          2  saying for the local neighborhood as I pointed out,

          3  the restaurant around the corner spelled A- M- A- R-

          4  A- N T- H at 21 East 62nd Street also has a sidewalk

          5  cafe.  It's consistent with the neighborhood.  We

          6  have no violations against the restaurant from the

          7  neighborhood since 1998 when Mr. Ballan became aware

          8  of it so we think we have been very good neighbors.

          9  We don't know where these complaints come from.  It

         10  took Mr. Ballan completely by surprise.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Well, again, the

         12  community's going to testify so we'll talk then.

         13                 MR. ROSENBERG: I don't know what the

         14  process is to hand these papers up.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Mr. Chair, he

         16  has documents that he wants to hand out.  I don't

         17  know.

         18                 MR. BARBARA: We have the architect

         19  although I see no purpose for him.

         20                 MR. ROSENBERG: I'm sorry Mr.

         21  Chairman, did you want the architect to speak?

         22                 MR. BARBARA: We're fine if you're

         23  happy.

         24                 MR. ROSENBERG: We have the architect

         25  here.  He was a little tied up in the inclement
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          2  weather so if there's any questions for the

          3  architect, he is here to answer questions.  If not,

          4  I guess we're done with our presentation.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you Mr.

          6  Chairman. Gentlemen, I'm just a kind of small

          7  country Councilman and lawyer from Staten Island.

          8                 MR. BARBARA: I've actually heard of

          9  you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you and

         11  I, first I want to thank you for paying your sales

         12  tax so that my colleagues and I can enjoy the light

         13  in this building and the ability to serve the people

         14  of the City of New York in any humble way that we

         15  can. Being from the country and not knowing or being

         16  as familiar with the world wide reputation of this

         17  restaurant. I just have a question for counsel.  It

         18  seems to me that the analysis that we should be

         19  undertaking which you laid out for us very well and

         20  we're thankful for that, we like to be reminded what

         21  it is we should be doing from time to time, should

         22  not be who the applicant is and whether or not the

         23  application or someone who's world famous in a

         24  restaurant is world famous but given of the nature

         25  of what the City Charter says, what the decisional
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          2  law says, we should be looking at whether or not

          3  this is a benefit to the use of this land.

          4  Irrespective of all these other things that you told

          5  us whether you're paying our sales tax, whether

          6  famous people go there, whether the food there is

          7  very good or not.

          8                 MR. ROSENBERG: I forgot to mention

          9  that part.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: So, I'm sure

         11  it is.  I am sure that you are here advocating

         12  zealously on behalf of this application because it's

         13  a fine restaurant.  But the concern is and the issue

         14  has to be that there seems to be serious community

         15  opposition to this project and I don't think it

         16  behooves your application to gainsay whether or not

         17  that opposition exists or whether it's justified

         18  because just in the last few minutes, I've been

         19  shown pictures where there are planters located

         20  outside the restaurant which are admittedly put out

         21  there without permission so then I think well maybe

         22  this is a restaurant that thinks that it can do what

         23  it wants without having the approvals of the City of

         24  New York.  Whether or not that approval process is

         25  sometimes burdensome, this is clearly a street in
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          2  midtown Manhattan where there's a lot of pedestrian

          3  traffic and so we have to be concerned. We have to

          4  take into consideration not only the people who can

          5  go to this restaurant and enjoy the fine fare but

          6  also the pedestrians who have to walk on the

          7  sidewalk and have to go to work so they can provide

          8  for their families and so that we can all pay sales

          9  tax so that we can have lights on in this building.

         10  So the question is, how is it that this community

         11  opposition exists?  Why is it so strong and how do

         12  we -- why are we not to look at the past record to

         13  predict the future?

         14                 MR. ROSENBERG: Okay, let me just

         15  answer that because there's a process to what we,

         16  and I don't want to sound like a civic lesson, but

         17  there's a process to which I think we all honor and

         18  since most of us seem to be lawyers here, we could

         19  all appreciate that.  The less fortunate of us are

         20  lawyers here and I'm ashamed to admit I'm one of

         21  those less fortunate ones but I think we all

         22  understand from, based just on our understanding of

         23  how our government works, we're all elected

         24  officials so the fact of the matter is, before you

         25  just mentioned this to me, I didn't know anything
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          2  about the planters.  So I haven't had an opportunity

          3  to speak to my client to find out what the story is

          4  with the planters and in a sense, we're being and I

          5  want to use this lightly, like ambushed because I'm

          6  not prepared for it.  That's why we have a legal

          7  system which says if you violate the law, you get a

          8  summons and then you answer the summons and then

          9  this Council has passed laws that says what's the

         10  punishment for violating that statute and if it's a

         11  fine, we pay the fine whatever it is.  Okay so I'm

         12  totally unaware and unprepared to speak to those

         13  planters other than to say that to the extent that

         14  they exist and they're in violation of statute, they

         15  will be removed immediately.  We pledge to comply

         16  with the law completely.  I don't know why or if

         17  those planters are there.  I don't know if those are

         18  legitimate photographs, I'm not saying they're not.

         19  I don't know anything about it.  All I know is I'm

         20  finding out about it now.  The fact of the matter

         21  is, my client putting planters out I think was done,

         22  if he did do it, in good faith to try to beautify

         23  the appearance of his restaurant.  He may have been

         24  ignorant of the fact that he needed permission for

         25  that too in addition to a sidewalk cafe license and
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          2  apparently there's going to be a learning curve

          3  which he is now learning right now and is pledging,

          4  he has no benefit to violate the law.  There's

          5  nothing to gain from doing that.  He's not had been

          6  (sic) cited for violations since 1998.

          7  Apparently, the planters weren't such a big problem

          8  that no one sought to cite him for it.  I'm not

          9  saying that makes it right. I'm not justifying it

         10  but what I'm saying to you is that there's a place

         11  and a time for things.  I don't think that's a fair

         12  consideration in this application.  This City

         13  Council passed a zoning law which he has complied

         14  with fully.  The independent Department of Consumer

         15  Affairs, independent and impartial, has looked at

         16  his application, made comments.  He made the

         17  changes.  He signed an agreement which he pledges to

         18  agree to it and he will do that.  He's entitled to

         19  have his opportunity to do that.  We regret if

         20  there's been anything in the past that wasn't done

         21  right but it wasn't done to upset the community or

         22  to snub their nose at this Committee or the law.

         23  That's not his intention.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But you see

         25  you run the risk if you come before this Committee
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          2  and rely on the reputation of the restaurant and the

          3  past performance in compliance with the law rather

          4  than sticking to this issue of how this affects the

          5  land and the community, what the community's

          6  response is and how we should make our decision.

          7  Now, you've assumed that it's important that-- his

          8  reputation, his past records and now it's fair game

          9  for us to ask, well wait a minute, has there been

         10  compliance?  And then you say to us, well, if there

         11  hasn't been compliance he didn't know the law.  You

         12  know better than I that ignorance of the law is not

         13  an excuse and so maybe, maybe there is a problem

         14  with the community or have there been other issues

         15  with the community that have lead to this point

         16  where they now oppose the application?  And I think

         17  anyone, any applicant who dismisses the role of the

         18  community board and their input as that will be

         19  considered by the City Council, makes a mistake so

         20  let's focus down on the issue now of why the

         21  opposition is there, have there been other problems

         22  with the local community in the past that would

         23  cause this disagreement to be there?  And let's

         24  forget about --

         25                 MR. BARBARA: Mr. McMahon, I think
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          2  you're absolutely correct, Councilman.  First of

          3  all, and I, in retrospect of what's been said to you

          4  so far, the issue of whether famous people go there,

          5  the food is great, he's a nice guy is irrelevant and

          6  you're a hundred percent correct.  The real issue

          7  is, however, that you people passed the law and the

          8  law required certain things to be done and we've

          9  done those certain things and now if we don't do

         10  them in the future then you are going to fine us,

         11  cite us, make us pay a fine or remove our rights to

         12  do that.  You are a hundred percent right that

         13  that's the issue and I guess what we were really

         14  trying to say is we couldn't understand why we were

         15  really having a hearing and why there was any

         16  objection.  Now we hear that and we knew that this

         17  local board committee has made some community

         18  objection.  Let's see how serious their objections

         19  are.  You're going to hear from them so I guess more

         20  important than what we said originally is what you

         21  said and that is have we complied with the law? --

         22  First of all, why'd you pass the law?  You all

         23  passed it for a reason and that reason was obviously

         24  that you wanted city cafes of some sort and you

         25  wanted to make it more European for New York.  More

                                                            25

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  of an open City and quite candidly, after 9/11, we

          3  need that in this country.  We need that for the

          4  City and I was born in Staten Island and I bet a

          5  smaller house than you were born in and I am kind of

          6  proud of working hard and building and I think I'm

          7  kind of proud of him working hard and building but

          8  it's not relevant who eats there, the food, maybe

          9  even his character but you passed this law, we

         10  complied.  If we don't in the future, you'll be able

         11  to penalize us.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And I'll

         13  close with just making this statement, why it is so

         14  important that you understand that because the

         15  people in the community have to understand as well

         16  that's what we base our decision on, not whether or

         17  not tour buses stop by the restaurant because their

         18  rights are just as important as the community

         19  representatives in the community in backward Staten

         20  Island so that is what the focus is going to be and

         21  that's the decision that this Committee's going to

         22  make.

         23                 MR. BARBARA: Mr. McMahon, I thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member
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          2  Quinn.  I would ask my committee members to please

          3  be cognizant of the fact that we do have a lengthy

          4  agenda.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I'll be brief,

          6  it's not a question as much as it is maybe a

          7  statement or a clarification. You know, the Council

          8  did pass the small sidewalk cafe zoning law or

          9  whatever.  In that, it has a provision that a

         10  Council Member can call an item up if they have

         11  concern, if they have opposition, if they have

         12  concerns, if they think it needs a further airing

         13  out so I think your testimony was somewhat

         14  belittling to the power that that law that we passed

         15  gives us to call things up and we don't have to

         16  defend or even explain why we have chosen to call

         17  things up.  We have the legal power and authority to

         18  do that.  In this case, that is what is happening

         19  and maybe people will do it because their community

         20  board disagreed, maybe they'll do it because their

         21  community board agreed and they disagree with the

         22  community board so I just want to caution you if you

         23  all come back to us on other sidewalk cafes or when

         24  you're client in question comes for a renewal or

         25  things of that matter.  This, what we're doing today
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          2  is not somehow contradictory to the fact that we

          3  passed the law enabling these entities to exist.  We

          4  did.  We passed it with the proviso that we would

          5  have the ability to do extra review of items when we

          6  need be and your architect can tell you, we did that

          7  just a week or two ago in my district and the

          8  applicant was forced to withdraw his request because

          9  it was illegal so just that the department approves

         10  it doesn't mean it's so.  They approved a sidewalk

         11  cafe.  In that case, that was a violation of the law

         12  so they too are human and make mistakes.  Thank you.

         13                 MR. BARBARA: We understand.  Thank

         14  you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Being no other

         16  questions, thank you for your testimony.  We have

         17  one person signed up to speak on this item.

         18  Elizabeth McKee from Community Board 8.

         19                 MS. MCKEE: Good Morning, I'm

         20  Elizabeth McKee.  I'm the District Manager of

         21  Community Board 8 and I'm here to read into the

         22  record the Board's resolution of July 14th, 2004

         23  concerning 999 Restaurant Corporation doing business

         24  as Nello which is before you today.

         25                 At the July 14th, 2004 Land Use
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          2  Meeting of Community Board 8M, the following

          3  resolution was adopted by a vote of 26 in favor,

          4  four opposed and zero abstentions.  Whereas the

          5  establishment placed tables on Madison Avenue

          6  without permit, in violation of the sidewalk cafe

          7  laws and whereas the establishment violated the

          8  sidewalk cafe laws repeatedly as far back as the mid

          9  1990s and whereas the establishment continued

         10  violating sidewalk cafe laws despite the repeated

         11  efforts of Community Board 8M to bring the applicant

         12  into compliance.  Be it resolved that the

         13  application is denied.  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Could you, sort

         15  of because I think this is the heart of the issue,

         16  go into the long standing violations and you

         17  mentioned that, you know, they had been operating

         18  without a permit, this goes back as far as 1990s

         19  because I think that weighs heavily on the Committee

         20  Member's decision here.

         21                 MS. MCKEE: Okay, first I should say,

         22  I started working in the Community Board 8 office in

         23  July of 2001.  On a regular basis, we would have

         24  phone calls, complaints regarding Nello.  When I got

         25  there the file was already very thick going back to
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          2  the mid '90s.  It is true that in some cases summons

          3  were not issued.  That is because when you receive a

          4  complaint regarding illegal sidewalk cafe activity,

          5  it has to be reported to the Department of Consumer

          6  Affairs.  They then send an inspector out. I can't

          7  speak to the fact that that Department is

          8  understaffed or when their inspector got there if

          9  the tables had been brought in. I can only speak to

         10  the fact that on many, many occasions, my office

         11  received complaints from people who live in the

         12  community around this restaurant, the tables and

         13  chairs were constantly put out and they could not

         14  get around it.  They could not maneuver around the

         15  street.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: From the

         17  Community Board's perspective, are there any

         18  outstanding violations now?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Other than

         20  the fact that we just brought up the issue of the

         21  planters.

         22                 MS. MCKEE: I think the violations, as

         23  far as I know, were resolved with the Department of

         24  Consumer Affairs.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Questions from
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          2  Committee members.  Council Member Katz.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I don't mean to

          4  prolong this. I'm unclear because when was the last

          5   -- we have violations from 1998 and then we don't

          6  have anymore on our records, right?  So I'm asking

          7  was there other things were --

          8                 MS. MCKEE: I think there were other

          9  violations and I don't have them with me.  They're

         10  on file in my office.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm informed by

         12  staff, you know, who has researched this thoroughly

         13  that there are no outstanding violations regarding

         14  from DSC --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And there was

         16  none since 1998. Period.

         17                 MR. ROSENBERG: That's correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: There might have

         19  been complaints and just a violation not issued.

         20  All right, I just wanted to clear up -- thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Mr. Chairman

         23   --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm sure you're

         25  going to be brief.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: -- I'm going

          3  to be brief. Ms. McKee, the configuration of cafe

          4  tables that have caused the community consternation

          5  in the past, is that the same that's being applied

          6  for now?  Or maybe staff can tell me this.  When

          7  there are complaints, was that for the three tables

          8  that we're now considering or was there more?

          9                 MS. MCKEE: The complaints varied in

         10  size and the number of tables that were placed out.

         11  At that time though, I just want to say it was

         12  illegal for there to be tables and chairs out on

         13  Madison Avenue.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Okay, but if

         15  the violations were issues and the violations were

         16  cleared up, my concern is now moving forward and

         17  given the new law and the, I think the expression of

         18  the desire of the City through the City Council

         19  resolution on this to promote this type of business,

         20  the configuration that is now promoted, if I could

         21  have a point of information, is three two- seaters.

         22  So it would be six seats, three tables across with

         23  two seats.  Is that a smaller configuration than was

         24  complained of in the past or is that the same?

         25                 MS. MCKEE: I would have to double
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          2  check those figures.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And also,

          4  considering now that if it is legal then it will

          5  only be legal to do it in that configuration --

          6                 MS. MCKEE: That is correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: -- Which

          8  appears to be set off from the sidewalk by the

          9  pictures, maybe different than what the Community

         10  Board objected to.  So is the Community Board's

         11  objection because of their record in the past or

         12  because what is being contemplated now?

         13                 MS. MCKEE: Because of their record in

         14  the past.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Okay. Thank

         16  you.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         18  questions?

         19                 MR. ROSENBERG: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If there's no one

         21  else signed up to speak on this item, I will close

         22  the public hearing on this matter and move to the

         23  next item which is Land Use #283 20055061TCM.  An

         24  application by Poupetto to establish, maintain and

         25  operate an unenclosed sidewalk cafe located at 25
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          2  East 63rd Street. First I'd like to call up Ken

          3  Fisher, who had signed up to represent the

          4  applicant, to make a statement.

          5                 MR. FISHER: Good morning, Mr.

          6  Chairman --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If I could have

          8  quiet in the background please.

          9                 MR. FISHER: Good morning Mr.

         10  Chairman, members of the Committee.  I was very much

         11  looking forward to appearing for the first time

         12  before this Committee as an advocate. Unfortunately,

         13  I'm not able to do that and I would actually ask

         14  that my witness slip be amended strike that I am

         15  here in support of the application.  My firm was

         16  retained on this matter by the applicant about a

         17  week ago.  At the time, we did our normal conflict

         18  check and I was advised at that time one

         19  neighborhood resident who was opposed to it, a

         20  member of his family had consulted our firm about a,

         21  what I believe to be, unrelated matter but that the

         22  representation had ended previous to that.  Last

         23  night, I was contacted by that resident and based on

         24  our discussions, she believes that our

         25  representation still continues. It's not entirely
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          2  clear to me but out of excess of caution since she

          3  has asserted the conflict, I felt it was in the best

          4  interest of everyone to withdraw so I wanted to

          5  apologize to the Committee members for that as well

          6  as to both of the applicant and the person opposing

          7  the application.  Fortunately, there is another

          8  attorney who has been involved with the matter but

          9  quite frankly, he was not expecting to be testifying

         10  today.  I was going to be leading the application so

         11  I hope that you'll appreciate that if his testimony

         12  is not as smooth as you might otherwise expect and I

         13  look forward to seeing you on other and happier

         14  occasions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  What

         16  I'd like to do is then call up whoever is going to

         17  represent the applicant and you can introduce

         18  yourselves and we will certainly, you know, take

         19  into account this last minute development.

         20                 MR. MOODY: Good morning members of

         21  the Council, my name is Mark Moody from the Law

         22  Offices of Erin Richard Golub, Esquire, PC.  I

         23  represent Lo Poupetto Inc. Doing business as Le

         24  Bilboquet, a small restaurant that has been in

         25  business for 18 years under the same ownership, who
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          2  is Mr. Philipe Del Grange, who is sitting to my

          3  left.  It's a neighborhood cafe essentially of about

          4  35 tables.  I have some, Mr. Fisher warned you I

          5  might not be that smooth, I have some photographs of

          6  the cafe so the members of the Council can, if

          7  they're not already familiar with the restaurant

          8  itself, perhaps familiarize themselves with the

          9  entity and the area in which we are seeking a

         10  sidewalk cafe permit.  The permit we're seeking is

         11  actually rather small.  It's for four tables and

         12  eight chairs.  It was originally approved.  The

         13  application was originally approved, as sort of

         14  fairly convoluted history to this, by the Community

         15  Board.  At the time that the Community Board

         16  originally approved the application, the local

         17  precinct had indicated that there had been no

         18  complaints about the restaurant and I think it

         19  should be stressed that this lack of complaint was

         20  over a period of 18 years.  Subsequent to the

         21  Community Board's approval, the DCA then approved it

         22  and after that a complaint, from a lone resident who

         23  resides across the street from the restaurant, came

         24  in asserting a number of violations and complaints

         25  of noise, etcetera.  We then went back to the Street
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          2  Life Committee as a result of this one resident's

          3  complaint and at the Street Life Committee, we were

          4  again approved.  Thereafter, we went to the

          5  Community Board, the Community Board voted against

          6  us 17 to 12 and now we find us before yourselves.

          7  The violations complained of, by the lone resident

          8  are, in the main part, very minor and in fact,

          9  several of them have now been dismissed by either

         10  the Department of Buildings or the Landmarks because

         11  they never should have been issued in the first

         12  place.  In the face of these few violations and let

         13  me add a couple of things actually about the

         14  violations.

         15                 One is, there was a DCA compliance

         16  inspection on August 3rd, 2004 I believe.  The DCA

         17  issued no violations and said that the restaurant

         18  was fully in compliance with it's regulations.

         19  There was a Department of Health inspection.  There

         20  were three minor issues indicated but as I'm sure

         21  you're familiar with, the restaurant, it's unusual

         22  for a restaurant on it's first inspection to be

         23  given a full and clean bill of health.  Le Bilboquet

         24  received that absent these three minor violations

         25  and no further inspection was declared necessary by
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          2  the investigator on behalf of the Department of

          3  Health.

          4  Now, in face of these minor violations raised by

          5  this lone resident, we have a petition signed by

          6  over 250 individuals.  We have multiple letters both

          7  from businesses on the same block and within a two

          8  square block radius.  We have over two dozen

          9  letters, I believe, from residents on the very block

         10  that the restaurant, on which the restaurant is

         11  located, all fully supporting this application for a

         12  sidewalk cafe.

         13                 One of the complaints, for which a

         14  violation, I might stress, has never been issued,

         15  was that there was people on the street smoking and

         16  people on the street making a lot of noise across

         17  the street and again no violation has been issued

         18  for that.  I think that you'll hear testimony from

         19  my client, in a short moment because I'm winding up,

         20  that he and his staff will do everything in their

         21  power to prevent people from congregating in the

         22  local area.  There's no indication that the

         23  congregations thus far have ever impeded the

         24  sidewalk traffic or the, you know, the foot traffic

         25  outside the restaurant.  He has signed a stipulation
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          2  that binds him to do this. The stipulation also has

          3  several other requirements which he and the

          4  restaurant, he and his staff have already put in to

          5  effect. For instance, a notice in the window of the

          6  restaurant requesting that patrons, who are smoking

          7  on the street, will respect their neighbors and as

          8  the two dozen or more letters from the neighbors

          9  suggests, he already commands the deep respect of

         10  his neighbors. In addition, I understand that the

         11  Council has brought to our attention a violation

         12  with respect to some planters that are on the street

         13  outside.  Our position with respect to that is that

         14  we will remove them forthwith until we have an

         15  appropriate permit for them. And that's all I have

         16  to say.  I'll turn it over to the Counselor, to my

         17  client --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Before we do,

         19  could you just give us, do you have a diagram that

         20  shows how the tables will sit in front of the

         21  restaurant?  Because I think it's interesting in

         22  terms of this particular application, in terms of

         23  pedestrian access and I'd just like my Committee

         24  members to see that.

         25                 MR. MOODY: I don't actually have a
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          2  diagram but I have a large photograph here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That would be

          4  appropriate.

          5                 MR. MOODY: Perhaps my client can come

          6  up and show you how it's going to be.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The picture

          8  that's on the lower right I think is probably

          9  appropriate for you to show just how far the tables

         10  and chairs will extend onto the sidewalk. You see on

         11  the stoop, you have the stoop --

         12                 MR. MOODY: Three feet from the actual

         13  wall of the building which is maybe a foot further

         14  from an extent (phonetic) stairway to the next door

         15  building.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And I'm

         17  correct that further down the block one of the

         18  buildings actually extends further out into the

         19  sidewalk as well.

         20                 MR. MOODY: Yes, I believe that is

         21  correct.  If it's your pleasure, Mr. Philipe

         22  DelGrange can talk about his 18 years of experience

         23  and we'll be here for five hours.

         24                 MR. DELGRANGE: (Difficult to discern

         25  due to dialect in language) Well, how are you?
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          2  There is not much I have to say right now except

          3  that I'd like to go home very fast because I have

          4  lost quite a few things these past few weeks and

          5  they remove my lawyer and I'm sure they're going to

          6  remove my wife and my children next.  But except

          7  that, you know, the planters, if there is a position

          8  on the planters, it is something that nobody has

          9  ever known in New York.  That there was a law that

         10  these planters have been there for, I think, 18

         11  years and nobody has ever asked me to remove the

         12  planters or did something about it.  There is not

         13  much I can say after all what happened and every, I

         14  mean most everybody knows what type of person, what

         15  type of person I am and the way I work and I'm 52

         16  years old and I pass still (sic) 12 to 14 hours in

         17  my restaurant everyday.  We don't really have 30, 33

         18  tables.  We have 33 seats inside.  The restaurant is

         19  only 450 square foot.  The bar and toilet included.

         20  There is no standing bar.  It's only a service bar

         21  so if you want to stand at the bar, it's quite

         22  difficult.  When you have a small restaurant like

         23  that and you have people, when the law passed, and

         24  they were able to smoke and when the law passed, it

         25  is true that it was very difficult to tell people
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          2  what to do because the restaurant is so tiny.  The

          3  door is there and next thing you know someone just

          4  walk out and most of the people who are walking out

          5  are the people who live already in the-.  That's all

          6  I have to say.  Thank you very much.

          7                 MR. MOODY: If the Council wishes the

          8  expeditor for the restaurant is able to speak in

          9  greater detail about the purported violations that

         10  have been issued.  I don't know if anybody's

         11  interested in that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Unless my

         13  colleagues have any questions, I think Council

         14  Member Katz has some questions.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The violations,

         16  we discussed them.  Just can you do it briefly.

         17  Just sort of say when they were issued, what they

         18  were and if you cleared them up.

         19                 EXPEDITOR: Sure.  We received one

         20  violation for not filing a Certificate of Correction

         21  on some work that was done 14 years ago.  -- Both

         22  issued.  The violation was for not filing for the C

         23  of O and I don't understand how this violation was

         24  issued since they wouldn't have given you the C of O

         25  with out the Certificate of Correction being filed.
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          2  Another one was for emergency lighting and some

          3  various other items.  The building has taken

          4  responsibility.  They're the ones liable for it and

          5  they're correcting it.  We did get one for having

          6  some chairs outside.  We put the chairs outside to

          7  try to keep people closer to the restaurant so they

          8  weren't impeding pedestrian traffic.  We even put an

          9  ashtray out there.  It was stated in an affidavit

         10  that this violation was for operating a sidewalk

         11  cafe.  We've never operated a sidewalk cafe.  We've

         12  had the chairs.  There were never tables, never

         13  anybody eating.  We also received a Health

         14  Department violation in June.  Mr. DelGrange flew

         15  off the next day because his friend passed away,

         16  unfortunately, in France.  He forgot about the

         17  violation.  It went into the fall, four months

         18  later.

         19                 Normally, the Health Department puts

         20  a violation in default one to 14 days later.  At one

         21  of the Community Board hearings, our opposition came

         22  up with this violation that we didn't even receive

         23  yet showing the Community Board that it was in

         24  default.  I've since reopened that violation.  We

         25  have a hearing October 25th.  Our opposition also
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          2  came up with a Landmark's violation for a awning

          3  permit that was never issued.  We received the

          4  awning permit 18 years prior and all of a sudden

          5  Landmarks is issuing us one.  Landmarks dismissed

          6  that violation.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can I just ask a

          8  general question?  I mean, look, to not ask you

          9  about the clear controversy of this sidewalk cafe, I

         10  think would probably be a mistake so I guess simply

         11  put there has been arguments in the community about

         12  whether or not the restaurant are good neighbors, is

         13  a good neighbor.  My understanding of the documents

         14  is that there's been questions as to whether people

         15  were, you know, noisy waiting outside, waiting in

         16  line, the length of time folks were in the community

         17  outside and different things of that nature and I

         18  guess, I'd like to give the owner, I apologize sir,

         19  I forgot your name, Mr. LaGrange an opportunity to

         20  perhaps explain some of those issues.

         21                 MR. MOODY: He didn't really

         22  understand the question Ms. Katz.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think what the

         24  Council Member's asking is, you know, there's been

         25  some concerns raised from opposition to your
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          2  application about people hanging outside the

          3  restaurant, noise and she wanted to give the owner

          4  an opportunity to respond to that while he's

          5  testifying.

          6                 MR. DEL GRANGE: Well, since 18 years

          7  the restaurant has been open, I have never been

          8  aware that I got ever (sic) ticket or complained for

          9  noise.  Never once.  Never once.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I think, you

         11  know, I just had a conversation with the Director of

         12  Land Use as well and I think perhaps the better way

         13  of doing this and I apologize Mr. Chair is as the

         14  community testifies, if the owner and his counsel

         15  can stay so that at your discretion if you want to

         16  call them up to respond to some of the issues

         17  perhaps that's the better way of going about it.

         18                 EXPEDITOR: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         20  questions?

         21                 EXPEDITOR: Thank you gentlemen.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We have several

         23  people signed up to speak on this item.  What I will

         24  do is do various panels, opposition, in favor.

         25  First panel will be in opposition.  Shelly Friedman

                                                            45

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  and Patrick Rohan and each speaker is limited to

          3  three minutes.  I will not cut somebody off if they

          4  go beyond that however I do ask that they keep their

          5  remarks concise.

          6                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Good morning Mr.

          7  Chairman, members of the Committee.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Patrick Rohan, is

          9  that person here?  Ok, I just need to know that.

         10                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Mr. Chairman, the

         11  question presented this morning is that --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: First of all,

         13  remember to introduce yourself.

         14                 MR. FRIEDMAN: I'm sorry, I thought

         15  I'd been called. My name is Shelly Friedman.  I'm a

         16  member of the firm of Friedman and Gottbaum.  We

         17  represent the owner of the building, Mr. Ronald

         18  Perelman across the street at 36 East 63rd.  Mr.

         19  Rohan, to my left, is his special counsel.  The

         20  question presented here deals with the fact that we

         21  believe that the City of New York bestows a

         22  considerable benefit by virtue of awarding a

         23  franchise to operate a business on a public sidewalk

         24  and that this Committee's jurisdiction extends not

         25  simply to the compliance of the zoning itself but
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          2  also of the quality and the nature of the operation

          3  and of the applicant itself in deciding whether this

          4  award, this important award ought to be made.  If it

          5  were otherwise, this could have been written in the

          6  zoning resolution without City Council approval and

          7  there would have been no need to bring these matters

          8  to the Council if all that was at stake here was the

          9  leaps and bounds and the number of feet between fire

         10  hydrant and the curb. That's not something that

         11  needs to trouble this important body but the fact of

         12  the matter is you do have oversight and review

         13  because the totality of the situation is something

         14  that the City Council felt, in it's wisdom, in this,

         15  in making the zoning change in March was an

         16  important aspect.

         17  In this particular case, you're hearing much about

         18  violations and of course, violations can be cured

         19  and they can be cured within hours if you are of a

         20  mind to be a good public citizen and respond to your

         21  outstanding violations.  When we first brought these

         22  violations to the attention of the Community Board,

         23  at first, there was a lot of shoulder shrugging and

         24  snickering but in the last couple days as we

         25  approach the Council, we see some real activity on
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          2  behalf of this applicant to try to clean things up

          3  and correct the file.  But that doesn't take away

          4  the fact that for 18 years, this particular

          5  applicant has operated with total disregard for

          6  public process and public regulation.  During the 18

          7  years that he's been there, there have indeed been

          8  many complaints and in fact, I was asked by the

          9  Community Board to substantiate those complaints and

         10  since records don't really exist going back that

         11  far, I did have a discussion with the former Borough

         12  President who was very much involved in trying to

         13  get some order brought and that was Andrew Stein.

         14  At the time, there were motorcycles being parked up

         15  on the curb and the late night activity continued

         16  much in the same way it does now.  We have submitted

         17  to the Land Use staff, video tapes of the operations

         18  on the public sidewalk and you will see in those

         19  video tapes at 8:30, at 9:30, at 10:30, at 11:30, at

         20  12:30, at five to one crowds outside.  You will see

         21  them being served drinks.  You will see glasses in

         22  their hands.  You will see people sitting on the

         23  stoop next door.  Some of them with glasses in their

         24  hands.  You will see people leaning against cars.

         25  You will see people trying to negotiate their way
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          2  through the sidewalk and having to walk out into the

          3  street to make their way around and when we first

          4  asked this question, we were told, "well, they're

          5  just waiting for their tables".  Well, if the

          6  restaurant stops serving food at 11:00, nobody is

          7  waiting for a table at quarter to one in the -- on a

          8  Thursday morning, not even a weekend, on a Thursday

          9  morning, when they're out there making a lot of

         10  noise, the surveillance tapes, our private

         11  investigator has submitted a affidavit that they

         12  actually turn the music up after 11:00, not down and

         13  my client has continued, as have others, there was

         14  reference here in the testimony several times as his

         15  being the lone objector.  That is not the case.  The

         16  woman next door testified at the Community Board.

         17  She is not here today.  She would not appear in

         18  public because she feels she has been intimidated on

         19  more than one occasion simply trying to get into her

         20  apartment late at night when she has to walk over

         21  the bodies.  She's submitted photographs of the

         22  condition outside her stoop, you know, in the

         23  morning when she comes downstairs and sees what's

         24  there.  We have had other people join us in this

         25  complaint.  Those names were submitted to the

                                                            49

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Community Board.  This is not about a lone

          3  individual but even if it were one person, they're

          4  entitled to submit their views to this body and we

          5  appreciate that opportunity.

          6  The question regarding the violations have taken on

          7  a number of characteristics.  One of which is, well

          8  they're not really about us, they're about the

          9  building or they've been dealt with.  Let me read to

         10  you very briefly a copy of a violation issued both

         11  to the owner of the building and to the restaurant

         12  operator by the Mayor's Office of Midtown

         13  Enforcement on October 17th, 2003.

         14   "The violation is a zoning violation because based

         15  on Section 32 411, all uses shall be located within

         16  a completely enclosed building.  Noted in front of

         17  restaurant on East 63rd Street approximately 75

         18  streets from Madison Avenue has provided patrons

         19  seats and ashtrays.  This is an illegal use in a

         20  commercial district requirement.  Remove existing

         21  seating and maintain uses within enclosed

         22  buildings."

         23  This is the nature of the outdoor cafe that they

         24  have been running there illegally for years and now

         25  for the first time, they come forward to a City body
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          2  and ask to legalize it and our position is that an

          3  applicant such as this should not be bestowed the

          4  significant benefit of having a legal outdoor cafe

          5  where, for 18 years on and off, they have been doing

          6  just that without regard to their neighbors, without

          7  regard to the community and without regard to the

          8  law.  The Community Board has agreed with us.  At

          9  the first public hearing which we were not present

         10  because we were not provided the proper notice, the

         11  Community Board supported the application.  At the

         12  second hearing at which we did appear, the Community

         13  Board opposed the application.  The Community Board

         14  then adopted a resolution and committee, instead of

         15  the whole- hearted endorsement in August, they

         16  submitted a resolution that was half hearted and

         17  loaded with conditions and then at the final board

         18  meeting, they turned it down entirely.  The movement

         19  of the community on this matter has been, as more

         20  information regarding these old violations and their

         21  current conditions surface, as we bring more

         22  information to the public record, the community

         23  becomes less and less supportive and finally last

         24  week, the Community Board voted to recommend

         25  absolute denial of this application and that's- I'm
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          2  happy to answer any of your questions regarding the

          3  additional material.  No, Mr. Rohan, will not be

          4  speaking.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You and I have

          6  already had a conversation about this and I have a

          7  problem with what you're saying in terms of this

          8  long history of violations.  I mean I served on my

          9  own Community Board before I was elected, for nine

         10  years.  Usually, 75 percent of the complaints on any

         11  particular establishment or any issue comes from the

         12  Community Board.  I find it hard, from a common

         13  sense point of view, to accept the rationale that

         14  there's been 18 years worth of complaints yet the

         15  Community Board in it's first vote, voted 26 in

         16  favor.  I would have thought that they would have

         17  known about those complaints before.  We're talking

         18  about the same Community Board that just testified

         19  on the previous application and apparently they were

         20  very familiar about the violations then, so I'm like

         21  confused, so please explain to me how you think that

         22  between that first vote and the second vote, all of

         23  a sudden, all of these violations were discovered.

         24                 MR. FREIDMAN: We believe that the

         25  clear distinction between the two cases is in the
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          2  one, the community had been notified, the neighbors

          3  had been notified and that they took the opportunity

          4  to come down to Board 8 and testify that night into

          5  the record.  With regard to us, the zoning

          6  requirements are that registered letters should go

          7  out to the affected property owners to advise them

          8  of the public process and to give them an

          9  opportunity to participate and in our case, we never

         10  received that notification nor has anybody else that

         11  we ever spoke to, seen that notification. So the

         12  Community Board, and I wasn't there, in my view,

         13  acted upon the fact that there was no one in

         14  opposition to that application and also, all

         15  community boards do it differently, this Community

         16  Board takes the temperature of the situation by

         17  calling the local precinct and asking if there were

         18  any violations or if the squad cars had ever been

         19  dispatched out based on calls to 311 or 991. The

         20  precinct community affairs officer responded that

         21  there were no complaints and on the basis of zero

         22  people in opposition and a statement from the

         23  precinct that there were no complaints, I believe

         24  the Community Board acted as it did.  As soon as it

         25  was brought to the Community Board's attention that
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          2  the neighbors, affected neighbors were not afforded

          3  the notice and the precinct called in to say it had

          4  made a mistake and that in fact, the commanding

          5  officer, whose letter was provided to the Land Use

          6  staff yesterday, indicated that there had been squad

          7  cars sent out on several occasions over the years

          8  and at my request, former Borough President Stein

          9  wrote a letter stating he recalled having been very

         10  involved in trying to bring some order to this

         11  situation.  The Community Board opened up the

         12  hearing and gave us an opportunity for the first

         13  time to put in our case, to bring these violations

         14  to their attention, to tell them that the applicant

         15  hadn't even filled out the application correctly

         16  because there's a box there that requires them to

         17  check whether they're in a historic district which

         18  begins a loop of requirements in terms of getting

         19  the consent of Landmarks.  They just checked it

         20  wasn't in the historic district. We had to bring

         21  that to their attention.  As soon as the

         22  irregularities, the lack of notice and the error at

         23  the 19th Precinct was brought to their attention,

         24  they welcomed us back in to present.  On that night,

         25  the applicant, hours before, chose not to appear and
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          2  so it was a very one- sided presentation.  Ours and

          3  not theirs and the Community Board Committee voted,

          4  at that point, a resolution, in total opposition.

          5                      CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I hear what

          6  you're saying but you're still ignoring the real

          7  basis of my question- is that in effect, what you're

          8  saying to me is that the Community Board which

          9  normally gets the complaints from the local

         10  neighborhood, passes them on to the agencies.  In

         11  this case, even though they testified to something

         12  totally different just not ten minutes ago, wasn't

         13  aware of any complaints and didn't know what was

         14  going on on that block, in that community and

         15  unfortunately because of the notice which the

         16  argument you're making is the notice that nobody

         17  brought it to their attention.  To be perfectly

         18  honest, I find that argument a little hard to

         19  believe.  That's my opinion.

         20                 MR. FRIEDMAN: I appreciate your

         21  opinion, Mr. Chairman.  This is a Community Board

         22  which covers all of the east side.  There are

         23  thousands of cafes.  There are thousands of

         24  complaints.  I think the Community Board has done a

         25  very good job of late to increase it's ability to
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          2  outreach and hear but in the past, in this Community

          3  Board I can tell you that they waited for

          4  applications like this to take up issue with these

          5  kind of complaints and as a result, we brought it to

          6  their attention as soon as possible and they

          7  responded immediately and effectively and that's a

          8  credit to the current Community Board.  I can't

          9  explain to you the processes of the past 18 years.

         10  I can only tell you that there is proof in the

         11  record that although outreach to the Community Board

         12  was not made, outreach to the precinct was made and

         13  outreach to the Borough President's office was made.

         14

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Any

         16  questions from Committee Members?  Council Member

         17  McMahon.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you Mr.

         19  Chairman.  You indicated that Andrew Stein wrote a

         20  letter, could you elaborate on that?

         21                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Yes, at the Community

         22  Board Street Life Committee, it was brought to my

         23  attention that it would be extremely helpful if we

         24  had any proof of the longevity of our complaints

         25  because I had stated, I having represented this
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          2  particular client for almost 20 years now, I had

          3  represented that I had conversations with the

          4  Borough President's staff and that, you know, as

          5  indication that this had been a long standing

          6  problem with this particular cafe.  We had, the

          7  Community Board said, can you get us some record

          8  corroborating what you're saying here because they

          9  deemed that pertinent to their decision.  The

         10  Borough President's office's do not, going back two

         11  Borough Presidents, have the kind of records

         12  necessary.  I contacted Mr. Stein myself. I asked

         13  him if he remembered the situation.  He said he

         14  surely did. He specifically remembered, you know,

         15  getting the cops to chase the motorcycles off the

         16  sidewalks and he, I said would you, for the benefit

         17  of the Community Board, put that in writing.  He

         18  wrote a letter to the Chair of the Community Board

         19  accepting what I had said and affirming that he had

         20  been contacted on numerous occasions by numerous

         21  individuals regarding the complaints of the late

         22  night operation of this facility.  That letter was

         23  submitted to the Community Board.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But if you, I

         25  could be wrong on this, but I have some
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          2  recollection.  Didn't, does or didn't Mr. Stein work

          3  for Mr. Perelman at some point?

          4                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Mr. Stein has in the

          5  past worked for Mr. Perelman.  He has not worked for

          6  him for years and is not presently employed by him.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And did he

          8  disclose that in his letter that he worked for Mr.

          9  Perelman?

         10                 MR. FRIEDMAN: No.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Do you think

         12  that's relevant?

         13                 MR. FRIEDMAN: That wasn't the

         14  question that I had been asked by the Community

         15  Board.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: From what

         17  year was it that, he had a recollection of an event

         18  that occurred -- this happened in 2004, right?  And

         19  so, Mr. LaGrange is in this restaurant for 18 years,

         20  is that correct?

         21                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: So that

         23  means, he was -- this goes back to 1986.  Is my math

         24  good here?  Somebody help me.

         25                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Roughly, that's
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          2  correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: 1986 and he

          4  was Borough President from when to when?

          5                 MR. FRIEDMAN: I believe he became

          6  City Council President in 1985.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: So wait, but

          8  he didn't own the restaurant then.  This guy, this

          9  applicant didn't own the restaurant when he was

         10  Borough President.

         11                 MR. FRIEDMAN: We've never stated --

         12  we only have known there's been a restaurant there

         13  for a long, long time.  Mr. Stein did say that this

         14  continued on when he was Council President as well.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: That was in

         16  his letter?

         17                 MR. FRIEDMAN: I believe it was.  Yes,

         18  sir.  I know it was in his statement to me.  We also

         19   --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: When you

         21  talked to him, did you know that he had worked for

         22  Ronald Perelman?

         23                 MR. FRIEDMAN: I did.  I mean I work

         24  for Ronald Perelman at the moment.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Well sure,
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          2  but you're his, you're here fully disclosed as his

          3  counsel.

          4                 MR. FRIEDMAN: That's correct.  That's

          5  correct and also we had on the record in terms of

          6  contacts, of a more recent venture from retired

          7  First Deputy Police Chief Simonetti who is Mr.

          8  Perelman's Director of Security and Mr. Simonetti --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: So wait a

         10  minute, he's a -- wait give me that again -- Mr.

         11  Simonetti --

         12                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Mr. Simonetti is Mr.

         13  Perelman's Director of Security.  Mr. Simonetti also

         14  had discussions with the precinct on several

         15  occasions.  He made 311 calls and he was -- he

         16  testified.  There's an affidavit from Mr. Simonetti

         17  in our package to DCA affirming the longstanding

         18  nature of the complaints and how they proceeded,

         19  even the sweep by the Mayor's Midtown Enforcement

         20  Office in October.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: The proof of

         22  the complaint from the Commander of the Precinct is

         23  through the conversations with former Chief

         24  Simonetti? --

         25                 MR. FRIEDMAN: No.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: -- Who works

          3  for Mr. Perelman?

          4                 MR. FRIEDMAN: No.  Mr. Simonetti did

          5  not have direct conversations with the precinct but

          6  the commanding officer, I have the letter here if

          7  care to look at it, affirms that the Board, that the

          8  Community Affairs Officer was incorrect in providing

          9  information to the Community Board that there had

         10  been no calls and no cars dispatched to the scene of

         11  this restaurant.  It was to correct the record of

         12  the Community Affairs Officer who had made a

         13  mistake.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I just have

         15  one last question if I could, Mr. Chairman.  The

         16  Community Board voted and approved this application

         17   --

         18                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Yes, sir.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: -- At one

         20  point, that's correct?

         21                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Yes, sir.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And then it

         23  went back and re- voted the application?

         24                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Yes, sir.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: How could it
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          2  do that unless the application was changed?  Once a

          3  vote is taken, then -- were there changes to the

          4  application?

          5                 MR. FRIEDMAN: What had happened was

          6  that the Street Life Committee first heard this

          7  application with two deficiencies. One, the

          8  immediate neighbors, I'm trying to explain to you

          9  what Community Board's basis was for sending it back

         10  to Street Life --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I understand

         12  the basis but I also served my time, if you will, on

         13  the Community Board as many of us have and you

         14  cannot, it's my understanding, I'll ask staff about

         15  this, but maybe you can just answer my question.  To

         16  your knowledge, was there and I understand the basis

         17  because then obviously some research was done on

         18  behalf of Mr. Perelman and the people who worked for

         19  him and new facts or new alleged facts were

         20  presented to the Community Board so then changed

         21  their vote but procedurally, I don't understand how

         22  they could do that unless there was a change in the

         23  application.  Do you know, procedurally, how it was

         24  that they were able to take a second vote on an

         25  application?  Not substantive, procedural.
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          2                 MR. FRIEDMAN: I believe that was at

          3  the discretion of the Chair in this Community Board.

          4    All community boards follow their own kind of

          5  internal procedures.  We had brought to his

          6  attention, I brought to Mr. Warren's attention

          7  objective information on the face of it which showed

          8  that the application was incorrectly filled out and

          9  that there were inaccuracies in the application.  I

         10  also, we also, based on informal contacts the

         11  Community Board had with the precinct, the precinct

         12  had indicated that it had made a mistake and Mr.

         13  Warren let it come back to Street Life for a second

         14  hearing.  At that hearing, the applicant chose not

         15  to appear and we presented our case and the

         16  Community Board, at that point, voted to disapprove

         17  the application.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I understand,

         19  in your opinion, the basis for the new vote.  I'm

         20  just wondering if you can tell me how procedurally

         21  it was done.  If you can't, that's okay.           MR

         22  . FRIEDMAN: From the outside, looking in,

         23  Councilman, I would say to you that this matter was

         24  the Board Chair felt that this was a matter in his

         25  discretion with regard to the fairness and accuracy
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          2  of a Community Board, of a Community Board vote and

          3  he exercised his discretion accordingly.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: That's an

          5  assumption you make.  You don't know --

          6                 MR. FRIEDMAN:  You're asking --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: No, no I'm

          8  not asking your opinion as lawyer.  I'm asking you,

          9  do you know the procedural basis upon which a second

         10  vote was founded?  Not substance, just whether or

         11  not there was a change in the application?  Was it

         12  stated any time in the record that there was a

         13  reason that a second vote was being taken from a

         14  procedural point of view?  It's almost like reyes

         15  adjudicata, they decided it and then they went back

         16  and decided it again.  I want to know procedurally

         17  did they state in the record or in any way why they

         18  were doing that?  The mere fact that new facts are

         19  known is not a reason a case is presented.  They are

         20  bound by the same guidelines.  Not your opinion,

         21  just if you can tell me procedurally what they hung

         22  their hat on to have a second vote.

         23                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Procedurally, it was

         24  based on my request for the Chair's discretion.  Now

         25  please understand that after me, the applicant asked
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          2  for the same thing and received it twice.  It was

          3  sent back to Street Life twice.  Once at my request

          4  and once at the applicant's request so in any event,

          5  we each got that benefit once of going back to

          6  Street Life so that the Committee could get the

          7  facts right.  It was not simply done on my behalf

          8  alone.  It was also done following that for the

          9  applicant as well.  It is simply the rules by which

         10  that Community Board conducts it's affairs.  Thank

         11  you, Mr. Councilman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I have two other

         13  Council members who want to ask questions.  In the

         14  meantime, before I call on them, for the record,

         15  staff advises me that there are only two violations

         16  and the two violations exist against the building

         17  not the restaurant.  Council Member Christine Quinn.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         19  follow up a little bit on what Council Member

         20  McMahon was raising.  So in your statement, you seem

         21  to indicate that you had, you said you had spoken to

         22  a former Borough President Andrew Stein and that he

         23  recalled etcetera, etcetera, etcetera.  But he

         24  actually was never Borough President when this

         25  establishment was operating.  He was in government
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          2  but he was City Council President which has a

          3  slightly different relationship to sidewalk cafes

          4  than the Borough President who I would, I would see,

          5  this is my opinion, as more kind of hands on in

          6  those neighborhood matters in a borough than say the

          7  City Council President so you actually, your

          8  conversations with him were relevant to his tenure,

          9  relevant to this establishment and his tenure as

         10  City Council President, not as Borough President

         11  when he would have had jurisdiction over Community

         12  Boards and closer jurisdiction over constituent

         13  services.

         14                 MR. FRIEDMAN: I believe this

         15  restaurant was actually there while he was Borough

         16  President.  If Mr. DelaGrange says he was not the

         17  man in charge of it, then somebody else was in

         18  charge of it but these conversations and work that I

         19  had go back to staff that I know were with the

         20  Borough President when he was Borough President as

         21  well as City Council President.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, okay,

         23  let's just take a look at this for a second, so you

         24  believe the restaurant was there. Do you have

         25  documentation that the restaurant existed during
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          2  that period of time?  I mean, of course, you know,

          3  take you at your word, but it just needs to -- since

          4  you're saying one thing and the applicant is saying,

          5  not the applicant, I guess, yeah the applicant is

          6  saying another thing.  It would be useful for the

          7  Committee to have some documentation as to the birth

          8  of this restaurant and who was in charge of it when,

          9  so do you have documentation? --

         10                 MR. FRIEDMAN: I don't have that with

         11  me.  I would be happy to provide what we have that

         12  indicates that those contacts and complaints went

         13  back to, I mean I remember that my representation of

         14  Mr. Perelman began in 1984 and that was about the

         15  same time that I became involved in this matter so

         16  it may very well be that while Mr. DelaGrange was

         17  not the proprietor at that moment the fact of the

         18  matter is that this restaurant has been a continuing

         19  burden and I will try to do what I can, if the

         20  Committee, wants to establish that track record.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That would be

         22  helpful because perhaps there was a restaurant there

         23  and perhaps it was owned by a totally different set

         24  of people and those people perhaps should not be

         25  granted any special privileges from the City since,

                                                            67

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  if the contention that they were lawless business

          3  owners is true but if this is a different, entirely

          4  different set of people I'm not sure it's

          5  appropriate to have them be held responsible for

          6  what other people did so I would like to know, kind

          7  of, who was there when and what, when you referenced

          8  Mr. Stein, you raised that fact, or kind of alluded

          9  to the fact that the Borough Presidents who followed

         10  him, I guess former Mayor Dinkins and Borough

         11  President Ruth Messinger all had less, less well

         12  kept files than Borough President and City Council

         13  President Stein.  So I was wondering if you had been

         14  able to access the information from the files that

         15  Borough President/City Council President Stein kept

         16  since they were better than those who followed him.

         17  That might be able to add some information to the

         18  Committee and what members of the City Council or

         19  Borough President's staff did you speak with and

         20  what was the information that they provided?

         21                 MR. FRIEDMAN: The truth of the matter

         22  is that at no time have we testified that this has

         23  been a continuous operating sidewalk cafe.  Many of

         24  the complaints had to do with noise and late night

         25  operation.  These are complaints which, in the
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          2  course of things, could be addressed and go away for

          3  months if not years but they come back just as in

          4  this case in asking for the first time for a public

          5  benefit, we've brought forward the record of what

          6  we've had and the operation of this restaurant.  We

          7  are not saying, nor have we ever said this has been

          8  continuous but what happens is they, things get out

          9  of hand and once pressure is put on them, it goes

         10  away for a while and it comes back.  We don't have a

         11  continuous record.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But do you have

         13   -- okay, do you have any record?  Do you have any

         14  paper to substantiate what the government offices in

         15  question, the government offices that you've raised

         16  have said?  It would be helpful to me if there was

         17  that type of documentation to be able to weigh the

         18  severity of them to determine whether this business

         19  owner should be granted an additional City privilege

         20  because I absolutely agree with you.  If an owner

         21  has not been able to meet the laws when they've had

         22   "X", they certainly shouldn't be given "Y" extra

         23  privilege.

         24                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Council member, I

         25  certainly will review our files and ask the Borough
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          2  President for hers but I might also draw to your

          3  attention, over 50 hours of video tapes have been

          4  submitted to the staff for this applicant.  Last

          5  week, the week before, last month, there's no

          6  question as to the current state of affairs.  On the

          7  eve of their DCA hearing, when one might expect

          8  you'd be, you'd want to be as compliant as one

          9  possible could, I personally was there at quarter to

         10  twelve, witnessing the crowds, witnessing the tables

         11  outside, long after the kitchen closed.  I'm on the

         12  tapes to substantiate my appearance there.  It is a

         13  matter of uncontroverted truth that these, this

         14  operator, currently, has been choosing to operate

         15  illegally for months this season the very benefit he

         16  now shows up and says he should be entitled to today

         17  from the City Council.  We don't believe that that's

         18  the proper reward for such blatant illegal behavior

         19  over a sustained period of time.  I accept what the

         20  Councilman is saying in terms of what he has been

         21  told.  I have a piece of paper right here dated

         22  October 17th which says they are, they have not,

         23  they were written up for operating, not about

         24  wiring, not about a canopy.  They had chairs outside

         25  and were directed by the Mayor's Office of Midtown
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          2  Enforcement to remove them and since that date, we

          3  have supplied dozens of hours of video tape of them

          4  doing nothing about this violation.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Again, any

          6  documentation you could -- further documentation

          7  beyond the video tapes, because I'm not quite sure

          8  that the staff had the same interpretation of the

          9  video tapes that you did but any further

         10  documentation particularly relating to the

         11  government offices, I would find that very

         12  compelling.  I just want a one last question as

         13  relates to Chief Simonetti who I had the great

         14  pleasure of getting to work with a great deal when I

         15  was at the Anti- Violence project and I think is a

         16  really terrific alumni of City Government.  He, you

         17  were saying though that his concerns about this

         18  establishment were raised in his role as Mr.

         19  Perelman's Chief of Security not in his role as the

         20  highest ranking uniformed officer of the Police

         21  Department because I think in the 80s he was

         22  actually the Staten Island Borough Chief in the NYPD

         23  so he would not have had and was not yet promoted to

         24  the rank of Chief of Department so --

         25                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Councilman, if I might
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          2  respond, the answer to that question is yes.  It was

          3  solely on that --.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Terrific.

          5                 MR. FRIEDMAN: If I might elaborate in

          6  one respect because it's a question that's been

          7  brought up several times here. I mean, it's very

          8  clear that Mr. Perelman, through good work and good

          9  fortune, is a man who has met a number of people in

         10  higher offices: Presidents, Senators, Congressmen,

         11  Mayors and now finally City Council members.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I've never met

         13  him.

         14                 MR. FRIEDMAN: The fact of the matter

         15  is however, that our entire, our entire

         16  presentation, our entire involvement in this matter

         17  has been one brief to DCA, appearances at the

         18  Community Board and appearances here.  This is not

         19  been about major behind the scenes contacts or

         20  anything of the kind.  We have played it straightly

         21  right by the book as any citizen has the right to

         22  do.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         24  be clear.  I am not, I think there's nothing wrong

         25  with Mr. Perelman or anyone else who lives near an
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          2  establishment coming forward saying they like, they

          3  love, they hate it and there's nothing wrong with if

          4  the neighbor of that establishment is a person who

          5  happens to have an entity that has lawyers and

          6  Directors of Security for those people to come

          7  forward and say what they think particularly as

          8  professionals in an arena and there is certainly

          9  nothing wrong with bringing up what past government

         10  officials thought and there's nothing wrong with

         11  clarifying the record that that person questioned

         12  happens to work for the neighbor but all I'm asking

         13  for is more documentation and just clarification

         14  because it sounded to me, it was, it was not what I

         15  thought you meant to say.  I was afraid I might have

         16  misunderstood what you said about what and when

         17  Chief Simonetti said it so I merely was clarifying

         18  for the record, I don't think anybody has asserted

         19  that anything inappropriate has been done and Mr.

         20  Perelman stating his objections but we're trying to

         21  get as much information as we can so we can give

         22  those objections the full review that they as any

         23  person who objected whether they had ever met a

         24  President, Senator, Congress member, City Council

         25  President, City Council member, Borough President or
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          2  anybody.  They should all get the same wave.

          3                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Mr. Simonetti's

          4  affidavit is limit, in the record is limited to his

          5  role as Mr. Perelman's Director of Security.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you

          7  because if it was so loud they heard it in Staten

          8  Island then there would be a problem.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council member

         10  Katz.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I am floored at

         12  the amount of attention that four tables and eight

         13  people on a sidewalk is causing.  Just so you, I

         14  just am floored.  I've been Chair at Land Use

         15  Committee for almost three years, over three years,

         16  it seems like a lot longer, for a lot of years to me

         17  and I'm just floored at the amount of attention a

         18  four table, eight person sidewalk cafe is getting

         19  and I think that I do have one question about

         20  process but I'm also, there's 50 hours of video tape

         21  and I'm wondering during those 50 hours that all

         22  these things were happening, I mean the person

         23  who's video taping must have called the police,

         24  called the violations in.  I mean I'm just saying

         25  that if all these things were happening I guess I'm
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          2  wondering what type of steps were taken before today

          3  and before this Community Board vote to alleviate

          4  the mass problem that apparently this restaurant has

          5  been causing and I think to that extent we're all

          6  sort of asking questions in a lot of different ways

          7  but I think to a certain extent, that's really one

          8  of the issues today.  And I guess, the other issue,

          9  just on a pure technical stance, the Community Board

         10  does not have a right to reopen a case because it is

         11  in their interest or anybody else. After the first

         12  vote of the Community Board, there's 45 days with

         13  which the City Council should act.  That's just the

         14  process.  I mean, they can't say after the City

         15  Council has it, "well, let's reopen this vote and

         16  make that count".  So I don't know what happened.

         17  My understanding is, Mr. Chair, is the Community

         18  Board here to vote, to testify today in front of us?

         19    Alright, so I guess my real question was, the

         20  vision is, the idea basically is that the Community

         21  Board reopened the vote because of their unclear on

         22  the violations so even though it didn't have any

         23  technical stand within the process, they're issuing

         24  their opinion in that way basically.

         25                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Their position was to
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          2  send it back to Street Life once and at that hearing

          3  the applicant did not appear and so it held, it was

          4  sent back again but this was about, I believe, a

          5  commendable effort by the Community Board to get

          6  both sides in the room at least once so that they

          7  could hear from both parties and I think it's

          8  motives were programmed by that over arching public

          9  policy interest in having both applicants in the

         10  room at least once before sending this to the full

         11  Committee for a vote. With regard to the other

         12  aspects of your question, why this one? Why now?  I

         13  believe, in large part, it has to do with the fact

         14  that the zoning providing for this is relatively

         15  new. March 4th, March 20th, I believe it was adopted

         16  by the Council.  There were complaints at the time

         17  that the map that the Planning Commission had sent

         18  forward was too broad and that it allowed

         19  substantial incursions into the mid- blocks of some

         20  communities.  This is exactly that case.  This is

         21  what's happened because this is not on Madison

         22  Avenue.  This is way into the midblock and as a

         23  result, it's triggered a different reaction than

         24  this body generally sees on these applications.

         25  With regard to the surveillance, no, the idea was at
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          2  the time to show what was going on out there without

          3  necessarily contacting the police.  We had our sense

          4  that a record had been established with the

          5  precinct.  Squad cars had been dispatched from time

          6  to time. There was no question but that, there was

          7  no further need on our part to quell the police but

          8  that's about a complaint, not about a discretionary

          9  action and the bestowing of a gift.  That puts this

         10  matter in a whole different light and we come to you

         11  to say this is not the kind of situation where,

         12  where the applicant should be given this benefit

         13  based on the past behavior that you've heard about

         14  today.  The Community Board's point which may not be

         15  your point was "come back in six months, work with

         16  your neighbors, work to show us you've cleaned up

         17  the violation and we'll hear from you again".

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

         19                 MR. FRIEDMAN: We would work with them

         20  on that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right, I

         22  just want to, Mr. Chair, further request as the

         23  Chair of the Land Use Committee, who will be taking

         24  the recommendation from the sub- committee.  I would

         25  like the documentation as well that Council Member
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          2  Quinn requested. I think it's important.  I mean I

          3  think that you're the one who actually sent us the

          4  package that we've been using and if there is any

          5  other documentation that the Community Board based

          6  their vote on or whatever you can think of.  We'd

          7  appreciate that before the Thursday for Committee of

          8  the Land Use as well. All right, thank you.

          9                 MR. FRIEDMAN: I'll do whatever I can.

         10    Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Just for the

         12  record too, the second vote was not the full

         13  Committee, was not the full Community Board.  It was

         14  a committee vote.  And two, staff has had, had a

         15  conversation with the Community Board prior to

         16  today's hearing at which time the Community Board

         17  indicated they were coming down for the other

         18  matter.  Staff asked them, "well, are you going to

         19  testify on this issue?"  We never got an answer and

         20  as you all know the Community Board was here for the

         21  first application and then chose to leave and you

         22  can reference whatever you want from that. Council

         23  Member Baez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: My question,

         25  thank you Mr. Chair, I think it's for you and the
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          2  staff, what's the current position of the Council

          3  Member and have we received any documentation

          4  regarding the position of the current Borough

          5  President whether supporting it or opposing it?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The Borough

          7  President really has no official role in this

          8  process.  To my knowledge, unless staff corrects me,

          9  we have not received any indication from the Borough

         10  President.  I'm glad you asked that question because

         11  I haven't had an opportunity to mention it.  Council

         12  Member Moskowitz has asked us to disapprove the

         13  application.  We have nothing in writing but she did

         14  communicate to me early this morning that she asked

         15  us to disapprove the application.  If there are no

         16  other questions from the Council members, thank you

         17  gentlemen.  We have three people signed up to speak

         18  in favor of the application.  I'll call them up in

         19  one panel.  Cheryl Tannenbaum, I'm sorry I cannot

         20  read this, Dr. Minto and Patricia Lee.

         21                 MS. LEE: I'm also going to just

         22  apologize.  I'm not going to probably give the

         23  smoothest presentation.  I'm not a lawyer, I'm not a

         24  public speaker --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: First introduce
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          2  yourself.

          3                 MS. LEE: My name is Patricia Lee.

          4  I'm a resident of 530 Park Avenue, the corner of

          5  61st and Park Avenue and I've been a patron of

          6  LeBilboquet for several years.  I've also

          7  participated in a number of these Community Board

          8  meetings in the last several months and I would

          9  actually like to just respond to the last testimony

         10  in which I believe Mr. Perelman's attorney mentioned

         11  that he had gotten the procedure for the Community

         12  Board to reopen this vote based on discretion of

         13  Chair, Community Board Chairman Warren and I believe

         14  that Chairman Warren did vote at the second vote

         15  which was held in September because I was there and

         16  I remember that he voted to disapprove and that he

         17  did bring this up again and in the last board I like

         18  to just state for the record that he recused himself

         19  for cause.  He is a member of Brian Cave (phonetic),

         20  the Law Firm and I believe that Brian Cave has had

         21  some professional dealings with either Mr. Perelman,

         22  McAndrew & Forbes or some of the entities that are

         23  controlled by either one of those entities.  I

         24  really believe that if this was procedurally brought

         25  back by Chairman Warren, that the Council should
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          2  really investigate as to why he has recused himself

          3  for cause and if that was a correct procedure.  You

          4  know, beyond that I would like to say that you know,

          5  I personally, I can list dozens and dozens of

          6  reasons why I believe LeBilbouqet and Mr. DelGrange

          7  should be granted this petition and you know but in

          8  the interest of time, I'm really going to ask you as

          9  the Council members to really focus on three issues.

         10  One, you know, Mr. DelGrange and everyone in this

         11  community are well aware of the fact that this is a

         12  privilege and this not a right as a restaurant to

         13  have a sidewalk cafe but I believe that this is

         14  really a business for the past 18 years and a person

         15  that should be encouraged and should be rewarded for

         16  the dedicated service that he has provided for his

         17  community.  He is, on a personal level, I would say

         18  that he is one of the kindest, generous, most

         19  respectful people that I've ever had the pleasure to

         20  know.  I think that he has shown a great deal of

         21  respect for his patrons, for his employees and for

         22  this community.  You know, I have seen, in attending

         23  these Community Board meetings and I've heard the

         24  Community Board actually state to several

         25  applications whether they're going for a liquor
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          2  license or for a sidewalk cafe that they're looking

          3  for members that are going to be respectful to the

          4  community and take a proactive role in really

          5  improving the life and being a positive impact on

          6  the community.  Mr. DelGrange sweeps.  He shovels.

          7  He cleans the sidewalks.  He cares about the

          8  community.  He steps outside of his restaurant, if

          9  he sees somebody, I saw him take in an elderly woman

         10  because she had trouble walking down the street,

         11  into the restaurant to give her some water, to give

         12  her some rest.  I believe that this is a small

         13  restaurant and it does have, you know, a tremendous

         14  following. There are often people who are waiting to

         15  sit outside, waiting to sit inside, waiting outside

         16  the restaurant.  I believe that is a testimony to

         17  really the service that this restaurant provides and

         18  shouldn't be something that should be punished.  You

         19  know, I think that the tapes, I haven't had the

         20  opportunity, of course, to see the tapes but I would

         21  say the 50 hours that he's presented.  I would say

         22  that this is probably dated and that this is highly

         23  prejudicial because in the last three months I would

         24  say over two dozen times and I've seen Mr. DelGrange

         25  and his staff, they are policing constantly to make
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          2  sure no one takes a drink outside, to make sure that

          3  the cigarettes are either swept up or put into the

          4  ashtrays.

          5                 I think that secondly this is really

          6  an issue in which the community has spoken.  There's

          7  been 400 hundred people who've signed a petition in

          8  support of this community, this issue.  You know, I

          9  think the New York Post and the Daily News have

         10  called this a "David vs. Goliath".  I think this is

         11  several Davids versus one Goliath and I think what

         12  you're seeing, I'm not using Goliath as a

         13  prejudicial term but he has been a man that has used

         14  his power and used his influence to get agency after

         15  agency to come down on Mr. DelGrange and I would ask

         16  that if the hundreds of restaurants in this City

         17  that have been granted sidewalk cafes, have any of

         18  them had to deal with this level of burden, this

         19  level of proof to show, you know, after agency,

         20  after agency.  Former Borough President Stein saying

         21  that he remembers a motorcycle being chased off.

         22  You know, if somebody parks their motorcycle on the

         23  sidewalk, I don't really understand why that's a

         24  problem of the restaurant.  Was it even shown that

         25  it was a patron of the restaurant?
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          2  And third, I would say that, you know, in terms of

          3  the land use and if this is the best use of the

          4  land, I respectfully disagree.  I do think that the

          5  revenue issue is important.  I think that the

          6  sidewalk cafe that we're talking about will create

          7  revenues for the City in terms of both the fee

          8  that's paid, for the additional revenue that's

          9  generated, the income that's going to be generated

         10  and I believe that this is an order of magnitude.

         11  This isn't, a sidewalk cafe is very important to

         12  this restaurant.  It's a minor inconvenience to Mr.

         13  Perelman.

         14                 DR. MIRTO: Thank you, Patricia.  My

         15  name is Dr. Joseph Mirto.  I'm at 580 Park Avenue

         16  which is on 63rd between Park and Madison.  I've

         17  been there for, since 1980.  I am a chiropractor.  I

         18  get into the office roughly about seven in the

         19  morning and sometimes I leave it at 11:00 at night.

         20  I also serve as a Board member with the Preventative

         21  Health Committee with the Department of, New York

         22  Department of Health and I am just amazed at some of

         23  the testimony I heard from Mr. Friedman.  I, many

         24  years ago, I served as an Assembly Staff member and

         25  had the pleasure of being with Andy Stein and at
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          2  that time, Andy Stein couldn't even remember when

          3  roll call was so I'm just amazed that he remembered,

          4  in the year 2004, that he remembers a motorcycle

          5  pulling out on a block where he has no jurisdiction

          6  but in any event, I've known this man for many years

          7  and not adding, Patricia said it all, this man does

          8  care about the community and the reason why the

          9  restaurant is so popular because of his service of

         10  what he does to his customers.  It is a neighborhood

         11  restaurant.  People from the neighborhood come and

         12  they go to the outside of the restaurant. The

         13  restaurant's so small so we can't accommodate them.

         14  Within the last three months, I never saw such a

         15  tremendous effort on the owner in actually making

         16  sure that this does not happen.  When the smoking

         17  law was passed, it created more burden for him

         18  because it was a small restaurant so people were

         19  allowed to smoke inside.  Now what happens, people

         20  actually got up between an appetizer, right before

         21  their entree and they would take their drink and

         22  that sort of created this video tape.  In any event,

         23  this does not happen there.  I have been at the

         24  restaurant nearly almost on a daily basis because I

         25  literally have to pass it by when I go to my office
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          2  and none of this exists.

          3                 I'm also concerned about the

          4  statement that Mr. Friedman said that to deny the

          5  application and as the Community Board refile in six

          6  months and work with the neighbors to work this out.

          7                 Philipe has tried to work it out with

          8  Mr. Perelman and to be told by his Chief Counsel,

          9  who sat in my seat, that he needs to move off the

         10  block and move to Madison Avenue.  That is not what

         11  I would call about working with the neighborhood and

         12  working it out.  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         13                 MS. TANNENBAUM: Hi, my name is Cheryl

         14  Tannenbaum. I work at a building at 63rd and Park.

         15  I've worked at that building for the past 12 years,

         16  showing apartments in there.  I go across the block

         17  between Madison and Park Avenue on 63rd between five

         18  and eight times a day.  I have never been, had

         19  trouble passing by the restaurant even on that short

         20  time that they said there were chairs outside there

         21  that people used to sit on.  It never caused any

         22  type of blockage.

         23  Also, I lived for five years at 2090 63rd which is

         24  two doors down from the restaurant.  My bedroom

         25  faced the street and I was never once disturbed by
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          2  noise from the people standing outside that

          3  restaurant.  When I first moved to that apartment, I

          4  didn't know the restaurant.  I didn't go there but I

          5  have to say, as part of community, every day when

          6  I'd walk by twice a day, they would say hello to me.

          7    They would ask me how I was and eventually after,

          8  it was close to a year of them doing that, I thought

          9  they were so nice, I did start to go to that

         10  restaurant and found them always to be very nice and

         11  very nice to the people in the community.

         12  Also, I have never seen a table outside.  I've never

         13  seen them serve food outside and as I say, on a

         14  daily basis even on Sundays, I still work at that

         15  building and I go by there and I have never been

         16  troubled by anything.

         17                 The only time I was blocked on that

         18  block was when Mr. Perelman did have his people, I

         19  guess from the government there, because there was a

         20  bunch of those black Chevy vans blocking.  They were

         21  the one that had blocked my way to me getting home.

         22  The security that was there for parties that were at

         23  his house, at Mr. Perelman's house.

         24                 Also, as a single woman on the block,

         25  I have to say that I do like having the restaurant
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          2  there.  I've shown many apartments on that block and

          3  people are always nervous because that whole block

          4  is basically townhouse apartments or buildings that

          5  have multiple apartments in them.  There is one

          6  doorman building at Madison and two over at Park but

          7  the middle of the block during the night is a dark

          8  block and having the people at the restaurant has

          9  always been a comfort to me.  Going home, you see

         10  people out there, you know they're out there.  You

         11  know they're watching.  When I would go home later

         12  at night when the restaurant was closed, I'd always

         13  stop in at a doorman to ask them watch before I went

         14  home.  So having people in front of there is

         15  actually an advantage to, there's a lot of people

         16  that are single women that live on the block and

         17  that has also been very helpful.  And again, just

         18  referring to the point that the lady had said, if a

         19  motorcycle, someone parks their motorcycle on the

         20  sidewalk, it has nothing to do with that restaurant

         21  and I've never seen anybody from the restaurant pull

         22  up a motorcycle or anything onto the block and also,

         23  as to the late night service, I've gone there after

         24  10:30 at night sometimes trying to get a late dinner

         25  and they've told me that the kitchen is closed and
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          2  they've known me for years so I've had to not have

          3  dinner late at night because their kitchen closes at

          4  the appropriate time.  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Any

          6  questions from Committee members?  Thank you both,

          7  all of you.  Would the applicant like an opportunity

          8  to respond to anything that's been brought up?

          9  We will proceed to take the vote on the first two

         10  items because The Harlem Hotel/Harlem Park issue

         11  which we will hear shortly, we will not be taking a

         12  vote on.  We will have the public hearing on that

         13  and take the vote on Thursday.  So I would ask that

         14  if we can round up my Committee members who may have

         15  stepped outside for a second before we take the

         16  vote.

         17  I'll take my prerogative as Chair to make a few

         18  comments.  First of all, this Committee, as any

         19  Committee of the Council, always takes into account

         20  very highly the recommendations of the individual

         21  Council member.  In this case, Council Member

         22  Moskowitz has asked, has told me of her opposition

         23  to both applications.  However, there are certain

         24  considerations that I think we should all review

         25  before making a decision.  One of which is, the
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          2  Council, just recently, passed the small sidewalk

          3  cafe legislation.  Having passed that legislation, I

          4  think it's incumbent upon us when these applications

          5  do come before us, that if the cafe does meet the

          6  guidelines, that we should pass it.  Of course, we

          7  always take into account the history of what's gone

          8  on, whether the cafe owner has been a good neighbor.

          9  That has always been a concern of this Committee and

         10  this Chair because they are getting a special

         11  benefit.

         12                 In the case of the second

         13  application, which has drawn, obviously, the

         14  greatest amount of attention here this morning and

         15  throughout the media prior to this public hearing.

         16  I can find, in my opinion, no substantive evidence

         17  not to approve the application based upon the fact,

         18  I do not see this long history of complaints that

         19  has been alleged.

         20                 I very rarely say something of this

         21  nature but it is clearly, I mean the allegation

         22  David v. Goliath, has been used and I think it's

         23  very appropriate.  I've never seen a situation where

         24  so much resources has been brought to bear against

         25  an application and in this case, as Council Member
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          2  Katz said, we're talking about four tables and eight

          3  chairs.

          4                 It is unbelievable the amount of

          5  attention that has been brought to bear against this

          6  application and I would say to the owner of this

          7  restaurant, God bless you for trying to do business

          8  in a city when somebody comes at you like this.  It

          9  is an absolute shame in my opinion.  It is a real

         10  disgrace.  I'm not alleging that anything illegal

         11  went on but it just goes to show you the amount of

         12  resources and power that can be brought to bear on

         13  any one individual and I think it was very

         14  inappropriate for them to do that.  It wasn't

         15  illegal.  It wasn't unethical but it just goes to

         16  show you what some people have to put up with in

         17  this City.  As Chair, I certainly would recommend to

         18  my Committee members that both applications be

         19  approved and I'll ask Counsel to call the roll.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Chair Avella.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Quinn.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Baez

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Mr. Chair, to

          4  explain my vote? I really just want to -- I also

          5  will be voting aye on both applications, as the

          6  Chair of the Land Use Committee as well.  I will

          7  make a recommendation to approve.  I just want to --

          8  on the first application with Nello's, also I also

          9  found that the last violation was in 1998 and there

         10  really wasn't good reason to turn down that

         11  application and I would just say to the folks that

         12  testified, the process does work.  We called it up.

         13  The Council listened, listened to both sides of the

         14  testimony and then approved the application so

         15  hopefully, we have given you faith in how the

         16  application process is supposed to work.  And the

         17  second item, LeBilboquet, I guess is how you would

         18  pronounce that, right, Monsieur LeGrange? Le

         19  Bilboquet?  I also agree with you Mr. Chair. I don't

         20  see any of these long list of violations.  The

         21  violations that we received, in fact, we received

         22  from the opposition and they were the only two

         23  violations on the record as far as our research goes

         24  as well and I do believe that people need to have,

         25  and the applicants, need to have, as a city- wide
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          2  perspective, some dependability in our process.  We

          3  have a process.  There must be some dependability on

          4  it.  A Community Board re- opened, you know, as much

          5  as they can a vote and then they didn't testify and

          6  I don't really understand that.  I think that at the

          7  very minimum, this Council and this process deserved

          8  testimony from a group that was relied upon heavily

          9  by the opposition and I think that would have only

         10  been fair so I thank you for your hearing Mr. Chair.

         11    I think it was a great job under very

         12  controversial circumstances and I'll vote aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         14  McMahon.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Leave to

         16  briefly explain my vote.  I just think that I want

         17  the record to be very clear that for me in the

         18  decision making process that we undertake here.  It

         19  doesn't matter who the applicant is and it doesn't

         20  matter who goes to his or her restaurant and how

         21  world famous it is and it just as equally doesn't

         22  matter who an opponent is to a project.  Both or all

         23  should be decided on their individual merits and

         24  certainly, the impact and benefit to the land in

         25  question and the impact and the benefit to the
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          2  community in question.  Quite frankly, I don't care

          3  if the -- Mr. Perelman goes to have dinner at

          4  Nello's Restaurant which he may and I'd just like to

          5  have a little fun.  The point in question is that in

          6  both cases, the opposition has not, in my opinion,

          7  met the burden that they have to to deny the permits

          8  and so I vote yes on both applications.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Vann.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Mr. Chairman,

         11  may I explain my vote?  I been here for a couple of

         12  hours now listening to all of this testimony.  I

         13  could not help but think of what I could be doing

         14  back in my district with some real, real problems

         15  that people are having.  I take my responsibilities

         16  serious as a Council member, as a member of this

         17  Committee so it's my obligation to be here but I

         18  couldn't help but think about what I would be doing

         19  otherwise and how fortunate this community is that

         20  they're not confronted with problems of sanitation

         21  and poor schools and crime and high unemployment

         22  that they can spend this time and energy and

         23  resources on whether or not they're going to have

         24  four chairs or tables or something on their sidewalk

         25  is incredible.  You're very fortunate New Yorkers.
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          2  That's the issue.  You must really be two New Yorks,

          3  two Americas.

          4                 The other point is, I would normally

          5  take all of this into consideration and then weigh

          6  very heavily on what the Council member who

          7  represents that district thinks because he or she is

          8  probably very intimate with what's happening in his

          9  or her community.  In this case, the Councilperson

         10  has expressed through the Chair but did not reach

         11  out to me to suggest or ask for my support one way

         12  or the other and because of that and because to

         13  support my Chair and having heard the information, I

         14  too will vote aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         16  the affirmative, none in the negative and no

         17  abstentions, LU's 282 and 283 are approved and

         18  referred to the full committee.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What I'd like to

         20  do take a five minute break and then we'll proceed

         21  to hear the Harlem Hotel/Harlem Park issue.

         22  I appreciate everyone's cooperation.  We will now go

         23  on to the public hearing for Land Use numbers 286

         24  through 288, C040443ZMM, C040445ZSM, C040444ZSM, and

         25  200456, oh no, I'm sorry that's the sidewalk cafe
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          2  and it's -- getting a little tired here.

          3  Application submitted by 1800 Park Avenue LLC for

          4  eliminating, for changing the zoning map,

          5  eliminating from an existing R7- 2 District a C1- 4

          6  District bounded by a line midway between East 124th

          7  Street and East 125th Street and other streets and

          8  related applications.  I'll call on the applicant to

          9  make their presentation.

         10                 MR. CARRIDI: Good afternoon, Council

         11  people, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you very much and we're

         12  very proud to be here today and to present to you

         13  our project, Harlem Park.  We've assembled a very

         14  diverse team in putting this project --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Please introduce

         16  yourself.

         17                 MR. CARRIDI: I'm sorry.  My name is

         18  Michael Carridi. I'm managing member of 1800 Park

         19  Avenue LLC.  We've assembled a very exciting and

         20  diverse team for our project in Harlem at 125th

         21  Street and Park Avenue on the southwest corner of

         22  the College of Podiatric's property.  It's a parking

         23  lot adjacent to the Metro North Station and the

         24  project is very unique.  It's a mixed- use project

         25  and we'll have Enrique speak to the particular
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          2  components but we've received a strong support for

          3  the project at all levels of the Administration and

          4  the community including Congressman Rangel,

          5  Councilman Reed, Senator Schumer, Borough President

          6  Virignia Fields, Community Board 11 and Community

          7  Board 10, as well as UMAS (phonetic) and just, I'd

          8  like to go on the record -- I received a few letters

          9  of support after we submitted our package to the

         10  Council from number one, Deborah Wright, the

         11  President and CEO of Carver Bank and I'd just

         12  quickly like to read it to you.

         13   "Dear Councilmembers, I wish to reiterate my full

         14  support for the Harlem Park Hotel project, a

         15  visionary mixed- use project proposed for Harlem.

         16  As I stated in my letter dated July 27th, I am

         17  certain that this project will positively impact the

         18  Harlem community in many ways.  First, it will

         19  provide a series of first class facilities and

         20  amenities that Harlem has lacked for decades and so

         21  rightfully deserves.  Second, it will bring

         22  desperately needed employment opportunities to the

         23  residents of Harlem.  As you are aware, our

         24  community is experiencing a long awaited

         25  revitalization and this project will make major
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          2  strides in continuing to improve the economic

          3  prospects for it's residents.  I have been briefed

          4  on the design plans by the developer and am

          5  impressed by the attractiveness of the building,

          6  it's height and the breadth of it's amenities.  It

          7  is sure to stand as an impressive symbol of Harlem's

          8  rich history and promising future.  Regrettably, I

          9  am unable to attend the City Council meeting but I

         10  would like you and the Committee members to know

         11  that I am in full support of this project."

         12  And I just have one more letter from Gene Norman,

         13  the Chairman of North General Hospital who's our

         14  neighbor at 124th and Park Avenue. "Dear Chairperson

         15  Burden -- it was actually written to Amanda Burden,

         16  the Chair of the New York City Planning Commission

         17   -- I write to express my support for the

         18  application submitted by 1800 Park Avenue LLC and

         19  Majic Development Group for their project called

         20  Harlem Park.  Having worked in Harlem as a private

         21  sector architect beginning in the late 1960s and as

         22  a senior staff member of the New York State Urban

         23  Development Corp. And it's subsidiary, the Harlem

         24  Urban Development Corporation for over a decade,

         25  I've learned a great deal about the community's
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          2  strengths, challenges and potential, especially

          3  regarding growth and development.  Given this

          4  background, I believe that the mixed- use program

          5  for the Harlem Park project; hotel, retail shops,

          6  parking garage, offices and condominium apartments

          7  can generate a needed critical mass to the eastern

          8  portion of Harlem's main artery- 125th Street.  The

          9  site is across from the busy Metro- North Railroad

         10  commuter station, a block away from the Lexington

         11  Avenue subway and has easy auto connections to the

         12  Triboro Bridge and FDR Drive, making it very

         13  accessible to the entire region.  The design and

         14  massing of the project seems very appropriate with

         15  it's 42 story tower rising as a visible marker for

         16  the site.  It serves to reinforce the importance of

         17  125th Street as a main river- to- river thoroughfare

         18  for Harlem and adds distinction to the existing

         19  skyline.  The tower's simplicity makes it a fitting

         20  signature element reflecting the continuing rebirth

         21  of this well- known neighborhood.  This project

         22  should be thought of as another extension of the new

         23  developments along nearby Madison Avenue started by

         24  the Sponsorship of North General Hospital, where I

         25  serve as Chair of the Board of Trustees, that
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          2  transformed a blighted strip into a series of new

          3  homes and apartments.  The entire Harlem community,

          4  especially East Harlem, will benefit by the creation

          5  of Harlem Park."

          6                 We've brought together, as I've said,

          7  a world class team including Enrique Norten from TEN

          8  Architectos in conjunction with Michael Duddy of MDA

          9  Design to really bring something very, very special

         10  and as I had mentioned, it's a mixed- use project.

         11  It would be the first nationally flagged hotel in

         12  Harlem, a Marriott Courtyard. Dave Sampson is here

         13  from the Marriott Corporation to explain Marriott's

         14  input into the project.  First class A private

         15  offices and we're looking to attract corporate

         16  clients into Harlem to provide great jobs.  We have

         17  a catering facility which is much needed in the

         18  Harlem community and then also market rate housing.

         19  The conglomeration of these uses is part of what

         20  makes this project unique.  Going through the

         21  various processes from City Planning to Community

         22  Board 11 to the Borough President's Office back to

         23  City Planning and before we're here, we have

         24  received some concerns of the community and we feel

         25  we've addressed these concerns.  There was the
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          2  concern that jobs would not stay within the

          3  community.  We addressed that by signing and MOU,

          4  Memorandum of Understanding, with Community Board 11

          5  to assure that there will be strong participation

          6  from the Harlem community.  In fact, last week, we

          7  meet with the New York City Department of Small

          8  Business Services in conjunction with the upper

          9  Manhattan workforce --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can I interrupt

         11  you for a second?

         12                 MR. CARRIDI: Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And I don't mean

         14  to throw off your presentation but I think it would

         15  probably be helpful if you started to describe to

         16  the Committee what the project is and where it looks

         17  like and where it is on the site etcetera.  I think

         18  that' d be helpful.

         19                 MR. CARRIDI: Ok, if I may just turn

         20  over to Enrique Norten to present --

         21                 MR. NORTEN: (Difficult to discern due

         22  to dialect in language.) We have some boards that I

         23  don't know if it would be appropriate.

         24                 MR. CARRIDI: I apologize for that.

         25                 MR. NORTEN: Thank you.  Thank you.
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          2  Okay.  Good afternoon, I am Enrique Norten of TEN

          3  Architectos.  I am the lead design architect for the

          4  project.  I am working on this project. We have

          5  established a partnership with the production

          6  architect firm of Design Group International with

          7  whom we're working on this project and the principal

          8   -- is here as well.  Well, the project is located,

          9  as you may know, in the corner of Park Avenue and

         10  125th Street.  It is the southwest corner is right

         11  across the street from the Metro- North stop.  The

         12  elevated that train that leaves the City to the

         13  north.  I should say that the project is a mixed-

         14  use project.  It's a very complex project.  I think

         15  it brings the absolutely appropriate uses to the

         16  area that would very much activate and detonate, not

         17  only the development, the economic development of

         18  the area and this will be Michael Carridi's and the

         19  gentleman's chance to explain but I think it's a

         20  more than needed improvement in the physical

         21  conditions of the area.  We have been working about

         22  a year on this project since Michael Carridi and his

         23  partners have commissioned us and invited us to do

         24  this project and through this year, we have met with

         25  a enormous amount of constituents to this project.
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          2  I have worked, of course, very closely with my

          3  clients, with the immediate neighbors, with

          4  different community groups.  I have spent many, many

          5  hours and days in the surrounding areas of Harlem

          6  where I have now made, as I was telling some people

          7  before, very good friends from the communities and

          8  this is all in order to be able to understand what

          9  are the desires and the dreams, not only of the

         10  communities, but the visions of this great City, of

         11  New York City for this area.  I have also worked

         12  very closely with the City Planning Commission, with

         13  the staff of City Planning.  For a year, we have

         14  been meeting constantly in order also to be able to

         15  bring those dreams into this project.  Through these

         16  times (sic), we have made several adjustments to the

         17  project.  I strongly believe that the project has

         18  reached a moment of maturity where it just cannot be

         19  modified anymore.  The project is, I think, it's a

         20  very strong project that has gotten the acclaim of

         21  my peers, the acclaim of my colleagues both in New

         22  York and internationally for which I am very proud

         23  of.            COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can I just take

         24  liberty and ask you to walk through the project?

         25                 MR. NORTEN: Absolutely.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right.

          3  Thank you very much. We don't mean any disrespect.

          4  We're just trying to understand the project before

          5  we hear the advocacy of both sides.  Thank you.

          6                 MR. NORTEN: Okay, I think the best

          7  way of understanding the project is if I show it to

          8  you in sections because it's really a sectional

          9  condition.  Basically, the project has, I would say,

         10  three main components.  It's a low- rise component

         11  and the attention of this component is to

         12  contextually, sort of, mediate between what we have

         13  called the tower and the existing context of Harlem,

         14  125th street.  That's something we worked very hard,

         15  especially with the City Planning Authorities  The

         16   -- part of the project has -- retail at the base.

         17  Both one level below, one level above.  Above that

         18  we have community areas that are very needed to New

         19  York, to Harlem and those are like ballrooms,

         20  conference center, that kinds of spaces.  It's

         21  catering for the area for festivities of the area.

         22  Above that we have five stories of offices.  Those,

         23  it's all like, accessed through 125th Street and

         24  that's something that can be appreciated.  I'm

         25  sorry, here in the plan to my left so this is the
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          2  ground floor plan for 125th Street and Park Avenue.

          3  Now in the tower, we have, in this lower part are

          4  the public, the public spaces of the hotel and

          5  that's why you can see them here in different colors

          6  according to their different functions.  On top of

          7  that, we have half of it is a hotel divided by

          8  mechanical.  Half of it basically is residential

          9  units and then mechanical again.  We have our total

         10  height of 518 feet. We have, and this is, these are

         11  the adjustments we have made in recent iterations of

         12  the project.  This is what had been approved

         13  initially by City Planning.  Due to some requests,

         14  we have reduced the height to certain conditions.

         15  We have been working, as I said, very strongly with

         16  City Planning, trying to bring that, what I, sorry,

         17  to me it's a very important silhouette.  For the

         18  building we're trying to make this building both an

         19  icon and a beacon for the City.  It's, as you see,

         20  the tower it's oriented north/south which is the way

         21  it would be perceived from midtown Manhattan, from

         22  uptown Manhattan, giving it's very best facades so

         23  it would be a silhouette from far but giving it it's

         24  very best elevations both to East Harlem and West

         25  Harlem so we have been dealing with this sort of
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          2  dual scale condition where the building would be

          3  appreciated from far away and it would make it's own

          4  architectural statement, it's own formal statement

          5  as you see it from far but as you get closer to it,

          6  it addresses both the neighborhood and eventually

          7  the very specific conditions of the street.  As I

          8  said, it's come to a point that we've made all kinds

          9  of adjustments -- a moment of maturity where the

         10  project can really not accept, without suffering

         11  highly in it's quality and excellence, any

         12  modification.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Maybe I missed

         14  it, you said --

         15                 MR. NORTEN: No, no, no.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: -- But let me

         17  finish the question first.  There's three

         18  components.  The low- rise, the tower --

         19                 MR. NORTEN: And the transition.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: -- And the

         21  transition.  That's what you were talking about the

         22  third, which is mechanicals.

         23                 MR. CARRIDI: And also below grade

         24  parking.

         25                 MR. NORTEN: I'm sorry.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Tell me what

          3  that is.

          4                 MR. NORTEN: It's the public spaces of

          5  the hotel.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: That's the third

          7  component. Okay.

          8                 MR. NORTEN: Yeah, which shows

          9  differently from an aesthetic point of view not from

         10  a functional or good- use point of view.

         11                 MR. CARRIDI: We'd like to introduce

         12  Paul Travis and just discuss the actions that we're

         13  seeking here today.

         14                 MR. TRAVIS: Paul Travis, Washington

         15  Square Partners representing Harlem Park.  I just

         16  want to talk briefly about the three actions that

         17  are before you today.

         18  First is a special permit for a hide and setback.

         19  That really was allow the tower to move to the Park

         20  Avenue end of the site.  There, actually -- it's not

         21  really a height waiver, it's a setback waiver. There

         22  is no height limit on this site.

         23  Second is a special permit for a public parking

         24  garage.  If this hotel and particularly, the

         25  catering facility are going to be successful at this
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          2  site, parking is a very key element so that's the

          3  second action.

          4  The third and perhaps the most consequential action

          5  you're considering is the change in the zoning map

          6  which is being changed to a C4- 7 which I would note

          7  is an FAR of 10.  I think as you look at it today,

          8  you have to say is this the right zoning for this

          9  site?  And we believe, I think City Planning and the

         10  others who have looked at this believe very

         11  strongly, it is the appropriate zoning.  First of

         12  all, this is a site at the two major arterials in

         13  Harlem, 125th Street and Park Avenue.  It is a site

         14  at the second largest transit hub in Manhattan.  The

         15  major transit hub for uptown.  It is a site that

         16  clearly has the ability to accommodate significant

         17  density.  Now if you look at the other, what we sort

         18  of called, the other "downtowns" in New York and

         19  particularly the last two major rezonings in New

         20  York.  The rezonings in Long Island City and

         21  downtown Brooklyn, I would note that in both of

         22  those rezonings, there was a concentration of

         23  density at the transit hubs.  City Planning

         24  encouraged developers at those transit hubs to build

         25  prominent iconic buildings.  There were no height
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          2  limits imposed at those transit hubs and in fact, in

          3  both areas, the FAR that was approved by the City

          4  Planning Commission and then of course by the City

          5  Council was an FAR of 12.  Higher than is at this

          6  site.  So I would say very strongly, we believe this

          7  is the appropriate zoning for this site and those

          8  are the three actions you'll be considering today.

          9                 MR. CARRIDI: Thank you.  I'd just

         10  like to go back and address some of the concerns

         11  along the way and number one, as I mentioned

         12  earlier, was the job consideration and we've worked

         13  closely with the various -- with Community Board 11

         14  to put together a Memorandum of Understanding again

         15  to reiterate, this past week met with New York City

         16  Department of Small Business Services and Upper

         17  Manhattan Workforce One Career Center who works in

         18  conjunction with SeedCo (phonetic) and they have an

         19  area in West Harlem basically to solicit

         20  applications, applicants first from Community Board

         21  11 then to Community Board 10 and then balance of

         22  Harlem and the balance of Manhattan seeking a strong

         23  minority participation.  In our MOU with CB,

         24  Community Board 11, we put in a minimum of 25

         25  percent minority requirement into the project and
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          2  the other issue that we believe we did address was

          3  the height issue and not everyone's going to agree

          4  on every design but the vast majority, in our

          5  opinion, support the design and we feel we're

          6  bringing again something very special to Harlem and

          7  Harlem deserves the best and that is way a world

          8  class architect was brought in for design and came

          9  up with a spectacular design.  In fact, Harlem Park

         10  is sited as one the newest, the new New York skyline

         11  and Virginia Fields, in my meeting with her, meeting

         12  with her, she stressed that how important it is to

         13  have such an iconic design at the entry point for

         14  all of Manhattan and this is a key entry point and

         15  as everyone knows, there's a lot of development

         16  going on in West Harlem, there's a lot of

         17  development going on in East Harlem and in our

         18  opinion, this is going to join East and West Harlem

         19  together because between Park and Fifth Avenue,

         20  there's minimal development going on and bringing in

         21  a structure of this nature will really combine the

         22  two and we've spent, as Enrique mentioned, many,

         23  many months working in conjunction with City

         24  Planning and going back and forth and to address

         25  some of the concerns of the height and where we
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          2  reduced it from a 44, I'm sorry, 42 story structure

          3  down to 38 stories so we feel that we did address

          4  the concerns and it wasn't just by lopping off a

          5  couple of floors.  It was a little more intense than

          6  that looking at the overall viability of the project

          7  because we're building approximately 160,000 feet of

          8  class A office space and the amount of subsidies

          9  available for the project wouldn't allow us to add

         10  additional office space and a typical building of

         11  this nature being designed for midtown Manhattan

         12  would command rents in excess of $70 to $80 per

         13  square foot.  We're showing rents in the

         14  neighborhood of $38 per square foot so just to

         15  attract real Fortune 500 companies as well as, we

         16  have some community- based organizations interested

         17  in coming to Harlem and our whole vision is to bring

         18  Fortune 500 companies to Harlem to provide good jobs

         19  for the Harlem residents.  The height is very

         20  important both for the look and feel of the project

         21  as well as for the economics of the building and

         22  we'd just like to continue the renaissance that's

         23  been going on in Harlem and bringing a spectacular

         24  design project there.  I'd like to introduce my

         25  largest investor in the project, Eric Westbury from
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          2  SBM Certificate Company.  Mr. Westbury.

          3                 MR. WESTBURY: Good afternoon

          4  everyone.  Thank you for giving us an opportunity to

          5  come before you and to speak about the benefits of

          6  the project.  As Michael stated, my name is Eric

          7  Westbury.  I'm President and CEO and I have the

          8  dubious task of also being the owner of SBM

          9  Certificate Company.  SBM Certificate Company

         10  represents about 17,000 constituents, customers,

         11  employees and brokers that sell our product

         12  throughout the United States but primarily in the

         13  midwest.  I'm based in Bethesda, Maryland but I'm a

         14  native of New York.  I was born in Brooklyn.  My

         15  mother went to Hunter College and we grew up, I grew

         16  up for a small part of my life in Brownsville so I

         17  have family here and for me this is much of a

         18  homecoming, to be part of a project that actually is

         19  going to change Harlem in a way that's positive and

         20  that's why we're part of it.  I'm here today to ask

         21  for your support because I've got a fair amount of

         22  money invested and it's important for me to see the

         23  project move forward as currently designed with the

         24  adjustments made from the community.  I have not

         25  been involved with the community to the extent that
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          2  Michael has but I look forward to spending time with

          3  those in the community who this project is

          4  definitely have a significant impact on.  There are

          5  some folks in the community that I know personally

          6  that I spent some time doing business with.  My

          7  background is banking.  I went through Bank of

          8  America's program and ended up at First Union and

          9  now Wachovia and I ran their entire DC operation so

         10  I grew up on the corporate finance and commercial

         11  real estate side and as Enrique said, the project

         12  has reached a point of maturity.  It is the right

         13  project and it's at the right time and we ask that

         14  each of you support us in seeing this project go

         15  forward.

         16                 I leave you with this, somewhat, of a

         17  funny story.  My eight year old son knows about the

         18  project and he took a little brochure to school and

         19  Sunday he approached me and said "Dad, when is the

         20  ground breaking?  I've got my blue suit and my white

         21  shirt ready. What tie should I wear for the ground

         22  breaking?"  I said, "William, I'll be able to tell

         23  you soon."  But he's looking forward to seeing the

         24  project go forward and I'm excited about it and I

         25  hope that you guys see the same things that we see.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you for

          4  your testimony. May I ask some questions now or do

          5  you have --?

          6                 MR. CARRIDI: Just if I may introduce

          7  Marriott Dave Sampson.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You're going to

          9  talk about details of the project?

         10                 MR. SAMPSON: I'm going to talk

         11  briefly about three or four key messages and I will

         12  be very brief.  I'd like Eric, I'm Dave Sampson,

         13  Senior Vice President, Diversity Initiatives for

         14  Marriott International.  I'm extremely excited about

         15  this project. This is a homecoming for me.  I was

         16  raised in Harlem.  I was raised on 148th and Saint

         17  Nicholas Avenue.  I joined Marriott 22 years ago and

         18  I'm a senior executive.  I'm one of the top 42

         19  corporate officers in the company.  I have a very,

         20  very serious passion about making sure that this

         21  project is a success.  We, at Marriott, have a track

         22  record of success in New York City where they look

         23  at the Brooklyn hotel, New York Marriott Marquis in

         24  Times Square.  We have many, many projects in this

         25  area that have been very successful and I'm talking
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          2  about specifically working with the community- based

          3  organizations, the clergy and really making sure

          4  that we mirror the community as it relates to the

          5  residents in these areas.  I'm not just talking

          6  about jobs, I'm talking about careers.  I'm an

          7  example of someone who joined Marriott and 22 years

          8  later, senior executive at Marriott.  There's a Dave

          9  Sampson and Eric Westbury, and if I can be so bold

         10  to say, a Bill Perkins, in Harlem right now who will

         11  have a career with Marriott because we are very

         12  dedicated to make sure that we -- the community.

         13  That's really my key messages. We're very excited.

         14  There's a tremendous amount of commitment in

         15  Marriott International around this project.  I,

         16  personally, will be held responsible by Bill

         17  Marriott to make sure that this project is a success

         18  from a recruitment supply diversity standpoint and I

         19  just want to end by saying, I really like my job so

         20  we really would like the support of this project.

         21  Thank you very much.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: If I could just

         23  ask some technical questions before we call on

         24  Committee members.  518 feet high is the agreement,

         25  my understanding is that you made with the City
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          2  Planning Commission, it was originally a 550 foot

          3  application, is that correct?  And now it's 518

          4  feet.  My understanding is -- how many -- my

          5  understanding is that the low rise is going to be

          6  retail then catering.  That will take up about five

          7  floors, the retail and catering on the low rise

          8  portion.

          9                 MR. CARRIDI: Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And then, that's

         11  five floors in all and then it's going to be five

         12  floors of office space in the low rise portion so

         13  now we have 28 stories left, right?  Right? Okay.

         14  The 28 stories is from what you said, half of that,

         15  14 stories then is office space?  Is commercial?

         16                 MR. NORTEN: Half of it is

         17  residential.

         18                 MR. CARRIDI: It's actually a little

         19  more than half hotel and the balance would be

         20  residential.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm sorry that's

         22  what I meant. I apologize so it's about 16 floors or

         23  18 floors of hotel so you have 28 floors left.

         24                 MR. NORTEN: It's 12 hotel floors, 11

         25  residential floors, and the rest are mechanicals and
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          2  it's mechanicals and lobbies.  Like we're

          3  separating, you know, the lobbies a couple floors.

          4  So it's lobbies plus the 12 floors of hotel.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Where does the

          6  public space come in then?  I didn't allocate for

          7  public space.

          8                 MR. CARRIDI: The rooftop on floor

          9  number nine is an outdoor space.

         10                 MR. NORTEN: That's where the pool is.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So the public

         12  space doesn't take up floors because it's on the

         13  rooftop of the lowrise, right?

         14                 MR. NORTEN: Well, there's two floors.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yeah, I mean my

         16  understanding from the sectionals was that orange

         17  portion.

         18                 MR. CARRIDI: The orange portion is

         19  the hotel lobby.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The hotel lobby.

         21    Okay.  I'll finish from my other seat.  All right,

         22  so we have ten floors of retail, catering and office

         23  space.  Then we have 12 floors for hotel and 11

         24  floors for residential.  I'm correct now?

         25                 MR. CARRIDI: Correct.  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.  The 11

          3  stories of residentials on top.

          4                 MR. CARRIDI: Correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The

          6  conversations that -- my understanding from our

          7  report and from other folks at City Planning that I

          8  spoke to was that you feel that the retail space is

          9  a necessary component.  A very large retail space is

         10  a necessary component to the application.  I guess

         11  my question would be is, I mean, there doesn't seem

         12  to be anything that high around there right?  For

         13  about three blocks if I'm not mistaken.  So I guess

         14  my question is, how much retail do you truly think

         15  is necessary in order to have, you know, to get the

         16  money back basically?  To make it profitable and

         17  useful for you to build?

         18                 MR. CARRIDI: Again, we went through

         19  with the concerns of City Planning, after hearing

         20  from the Community Board 11 and we've agreed to

         21  lower the project from 42 stories down to 38 stories

         22  and looking at both design as well as economic

         23  impact and to reiterate the office component is

         24  being subsidized through UMAS and the IDA and some

         25  of these other components and that's all the amount
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          2  of support that we received and are receiving is

          3  supporting the amount of office space that is being

          4  proposed here and if we add additional office space

          5  and remove some of the residential, we would not be

          6  able to afford to build it so after careful

          7  consideration, we did remove some of the residential

          8  floors to lower it and Community Board 11 has agreed

          9  to what we've done.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right, I'll

         11  let me colleagues follow up on that, I think, if

         12  they want to when I'm done.  One question, how wide

         13  is the building?

         14                 MR. CARRIDI: It's on 34,000 square

         15  foot site in the College of Pediatrics parking lot

         16  and the width is, Enrique if you could help me on

         17  this -- it goes from 125th Street to 124th Street

         18  and then it goes --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: What's the width

         20  of the street?

         21                 MR. CARRIDI: -- About a hundred feet

         22  in.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm going to

         24  yield to whoever. If I have further questions after

         25  everybody's gone around once, I'll ask.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          3  Christine Quinn. She can go next.  That's fine.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: A couple

          5  questions.  There was in some of the folks different

          6  testimony discussion of the new jobs that would be

          7  created --

          8                 MR. CARRIDI: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: -- And I wanted

         10  to ask whether as part of the proposal, and if when

         11  I stepped out I missed it, I apologize, there's any

         12  neighborhood job focus and if so, if you could tell

         13  us a little bit about that.

         14                 MR. CARRIDI: In our agreement with

         15  Community Board number 11, we signed a Memorandum of

         16  Understanding to have a minimum of 25 percent

         17  minority participation and to --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Would that be

         19  people, will the folks in that initiative come from,

         20  will there be a requirement that all or a certain

         21  percentage live in the surrounding area?

         22                 MR. CARRIDI: Yes.  Initially it would

         23  start through Community Board 11 then go to 10 and

         24  then the balance of Harlem and then there's also a

         25  commitment by us with upper Manhattan Empowerment
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          2  Zone.  The same parameters to employ a minimum of 25

          3  percent and we're taking that commitment very

          4  serious.  We've already retained one of the local

          5  expeditors, Johnson Design and we've structured the

          6  project where once we start the bid process, we'll

          7  have smaller contracts to afford some of the local

          8  contractors the ability to do some of the build out

          9  work and smaller portions of the job instead of

         10  letting out entire dry wall for the entire building,

         11  we'll break it up into much smaller contracts as

         12  well as some of the glazier, glazing that's going

         13  on, as well as a lot of the finish work and things

         14  like that and there will also be participation by

         15  women- owned businesses in the area and so on and so

         16  forth.

         17                 MR. SAMPSON: Traditionally, what

         18  we'll do is we'll come in and we will set up with

         19  the community- based organizations. First, we'll

         20  train the community- based organizations on specific

         21  skills that we're looking for.  Little things, just

         22  like eye contact, hand shake so when their

         23  constituents come in, they're that much better

         24  prepared than the general public to come in and get

         25  the job and secondarily, which is very, very
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          2  important, before we do an outreach to the overall

          3  New York City area or even Manhattan for that

          4  matter, we will interview, pre- screen and work with

          5  the Harlem residents to try to get them ready for

          6  the jobs first so that they'll have that

          7  opportunity.  We usually do that in terms of

          8  recruitment.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So you're with

         10  Marriott, is that correct?

         11                 MR. SAMPSON: I am with Marriott.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Are your hotels

         13  union hotels?

         14                 MR. SAMPSON: We have union and non-

         15  union hotels.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And what is

         17  this location going to be?

         18                 MR. SAMPSON: I don't know at this

         19  point.  We have a great relationship with the local

         20  union here in New York City.  I would think that the

         21  employees are going to make that decision, whether

         22  it's union or non- union.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: When?

         24                 MR. CARRIDI: I can comment on that.

         25
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

          3                 MR. CARRIDI: We've already signed a

          4  neutrality card check agreement with Local Six for

          5  this location.  Marriott in New York City, they

          6  already have an agreement in place to have a unions

          7  at all of their locations.  One other group that we

          8  met with just recently, New York City Department of

          9  Small Business Services in conjunction with Upper

         10  Manhattan Workforce One Career Center who works with

         11  Seedco.  I met with them, did a presentation, last

         12  week and they're real excited about the project.

         13  We're going to work closely with them also.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Great and just

         15  a final question.  When you were speaking sir, you

         16  said that the building had fully matured and --

         17                 MR. NORTEN: The design, the design.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: -- And that it

         19  couldn't stand, withstand any changes so should I

         20  take from that that if the Committee was to make any

         21  modifications at all that the project would not go

         22  forward or that it is your preference that we not do

         23  that?

         24                 MR. NORTEN: Well, it only my

         25  preference.  It wouldn't be my decision you know.
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          2  I'm just speaking from an architectural point of

          3  view.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.  Okay.

          5                 MR. NORTEN: That wouldn't be my

          6  decision.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So the project,

          8  in totality's position, isn't that if there were any

          9  modifications at all that it would have to stop.

         10                 MR. CARRIDI: Again, I think we've

         11  listened to some of the concerns, addressed a lot of

         12  the concerns and you know, it's not that easy to

         13  just go back to the drawing board and redesign and

         14  we've done it from when we initially started the

         15  process and it's been a long haul and we're real

         16  excited about getting in the ground and Marriott's

         17  excited about having the hotel in Harlem.  We're

         18  starting to get some very good commitments for

         19  office space so we're real excited about the process

         20  and we'd love to get in the ground sooner than

         21  later.

         22                 MR. WESTBURY: Could I just add one

         23  thing?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Sure.

         25                 MR. WESTBURY: From a finance
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          2  standpoint, when you start to -- we've been changing

          3  the project pretty consistently from the concerns

          4  and once you present a package to bankers, which we

          5  have done that, and you go back with significant

          6  changes, it creates some concern from their

          7  perspective in terms of, do you know what you're

          8  doing?  And we can't afford to have that with Bank

          9  of America and with a couple of the banks that are

         10  prime for financing these projects likewise for

         11  investors like myself, who was presented a package

         12  based on certain terms and conditions and those

         13  things change, then Michael, and I'm a principle as

         14  well, as the dubious task of going back to those

         15  folks and say things have changed and here's why.

         16  It could be very legitimate and they could work out

         17  but again, that's a process that has to take place

         18  which could slow down and as Enrique said the

         19  project has matured.  It's the right time.  It's the

         20  right place and we're ready to move forward.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         22                 MR. WESTBURY: You're welcome.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Before I call on

         24  Council Member Perkins, can you go into the

         25  relationship of the project and the medical college?
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          2    How is this working?

          3                 MR. CARRIDI: We're on a ground lease.

          4

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: How long is the

          6  lease and what are the terms?

          7                 MR. CARRIDI: 48 year ground lease and

          8  then with an option.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: For how long?

         10                 MR. CARRIDI: Another forty some- odd

         11  years I believe.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         13  Perkins.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         15  very much Mr. Chairman.  The project is the

         16  equivalent of a 50 story high building and as the

         17  visuals show, it's not that there's nothing that

         18  height for three blocks.  There may not be anything

         19  that high for miles around because what is closest

         20  in that picture, at best, is North General -- Mt.

         21  Sinai Hospital and it's no where near 50 stories

         22  high so this is a development that is totally out of

         23  context with all that the eye can see and especially

         24  for Harlem community and especially for the 125th

         25  Street and while I know that you have received some
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          2  letters of support for the project as we, myself,

          3  support the project conceptually, I don't believe

          4  all those letters of supports are as specific as you

          5  might be suggesting in terms of the height and in

          6  particular, the Community Board which will represent

          7  itself here, I'm sure shares some concerns about the

          8  height as well so one of the concerns that, I know,

          9  the community has is that this is an extremely high

         10  building, totally out of context with anything

         11  that's across 125th Street, north and south as far

         12  as the eye can see, number one and number two, as

         13  you know, the community had, amongst it's

         14  conditions, that there be some river to river study

         15  that would reflect some contextually with respect to

         16  this project.  Now clearly, it's the study that the

         17  Planning Commission is embarking upon has not been

         18  completed, contrary to what we've been told and the

         19  Commission has not indicated that this here project

         20  would be in context with what ultimately would come

         21  out from the Commission and so, I'm concerned that,

         22  from the perspective of the community, that this

         23  project is so high and I'm not sure if I

         24  iconoclastic necessarily means 50 stories high.

         25                 MR. TRAVIS: Let me just respond from
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          2  a planning point of view for a minute.  There are

          3  other very large buildings in Harlem, in fact,

          4  buildings of this type and square footage.  The --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Could you

          6  name one because I know the tallest one is on 110th

          7  Street?

          8                 MR. TRAVIS: No, I didn't say height.

          9  I said bulk and that really is what we're talking

         10  about here and it's a change we've seen around the

         11  City.  You know, the obvious example that would come

         12  to mind, for example, would be, for example, the

         13  Citigroup building in Long Island City and really

         14  the change is that when the state office building

         15  was built and some of the newer buildings, for

         16  example, that Forest City Ratner did a few blocks

         17  away.  Those buildings have extremely large floor

         18  plates.  The reason they have large floor plates is

         19  those buildings were focused on accommodating public

         20  agencies that need large floor plates.  This is a

         21  different type of office building.  This is a

         22  building that is really focused on the private

         23  office market and the private market as a whole and

         24  as we start to focus these buildings on the private

         25  market, the office floors and the other floors get
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          2  smaller and the buildings get taller.

          3                 So as I said before, if you look at

          4  the density of this, of this building, it was well

          5  within keeping of other major buildings on 125th

          6  Street and certainly other buildings in the other

          7  downtowns around New York City.  It is a taller

          8  building because of the change in the market and a

          9  change, I would say which I think is very, very

         10  important for Harlem, from relying on public

         11  agencies for jobs to relying on the private sector

         12  for jobs and if we're going to rely on the private

         13  sector for jobs, we need to build a building that

         14  meets their needs, not the needs of public agencies

         15  but the needs of the private market so this may be

         16  an issue that you will face again as other private

         17  sector tenants begin to come in and you begin to

         18  have buildings that really deal with their sorts of

         19  needs as opposed to public agency needs.

         20                 MR. NORTEN: I should have said also

         21  this before but when we started working on this

         22  project, we started all kinds of schemes of floor

         23  plans of organization both for the hotel and for the

         24  residential uses and the configuration of the site,

         25  the sizes of the site, the geometry of the site
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          2  would not allow us to do anything that would be at

          3  the end acceptable by a company like Marriott

          4  besides like these sort of double loaded corridor

          5  that ends up being a skinny building.  We couldn't

          6  do three corridors or we couldn't do four corridors

          7  or we couldn't even fit a courtyard inside that

          8  would make a more bulky building because we just

          9  couldn't fit the amount of rooms that were needed so

         10  it's really also a result of the functionality and

         11  the use of the space that brought us to define the

         12  configuration of the building.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: If I may, Mr.

         14  Chair.  It is my understanding, this is the first

         15  design was only 31 stories with Marriott in there

         16  and it had been designed with even more retail space

         17  than what we are presently having and so I'm not

         18  quite clear how it is that suddenly that private

         19  sector space that was created in the first design

         20  which was much lower, much bulkier is a problem for

         21  you now.

         22                 MR. CARRIDI: If I may Mr. Perkins,

         23  Council Member Perkins, initially we did design

         24  250,000 square feet of office space and you are

         25  correct, it was a shorter design but after meeting
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          2  with Upper Manhattan Empowerment Zone, Economic

          3  Development, the New York City Economic Development

          4  and ESDC, Economic State Development Corp., it was

          5  recommended that the amount of office space proposed

          6  was too much and that, at the time, there was glut

          7  of office space on the market because of September

          8  11th and they would not afford us any additional

          9  support for the project so it wouldn't make any

         10  economic sense for us to build 250,000 feet if the

         11  City and State would only support approximately

         12  160,000 feet.  That's why the design changed.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Well, I

         14  don't know.  The first time I heard this story it

         15  was told to me from the perspective of the Planning

         16  Commission and when I spoke to the Commissioner, she

         17  shared with me that she was concerned that there was

         18  not more, that was not her point of view to begin

         19  with, that it should be changed unless, in fact,

         20  because the City is on a mission to create more

         21  office space and so this is contrary to that

         22  Commission.  In addition to that, the rationale that

         23  you gave is in constant contradiction to what he

         24  just said so there's this kind of confusion that is

         25  problematic in truly being able to understand and
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          2  appreciate the project because at one point, it was

          3  bulkier for the purpose of accommodating more office

          4  space.  Marriott was a part of the project.  It was

          5  no problem contrary to what the architect seems to

          6  be saying then you decided to make it 50 stories

          7  high, less office space, with a different design and

          8  some notion of community space being a part of it

          9  though I don't know how -- I want to ask a little

         10  bit about this so- called community space.

         11                 MR. TRAVIS:  Let me just respond

         12  Councilman.  I think what we're saying here is that

         13  the earlier office buildings that were done on 125th

         14  Street had a great reliance on public agencies to

         15  fill them including the most recent building that

         16  Forest City Radner did.  The focus here as Mr.

         17  Carridi said before was to fill this building with

         18  primarily private office tenants.

         19                 In doing that, there was the ability

         20  to support less office space. You could have filled

         21  more office space and, in fact, as you may know, the

         22  Marriott Hotel that was done in downtown Brooklyn,

         23  the economics of that building were made to work

         24  through a large public agency lease.  The decision

         25  here was to do something very different, to build
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          2  the amount of office space for the private market to

          3  support and then to use private market uses such as

          4  retail and residential to make the proforma work.

          5  That is really a different model for 125th Street

          6  than has been done before so there's a real focus

          7  here on the private market making that building work

          8  and that was a focus I would point out that was very

          9  strongly supported by the Empire State Development

         10  Corporation and by the Economic Development

         11  Corporation.  As you could imagine, City Planning

         12  didn't opine one way or another on the economics.

         13  That's not really their role.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, they

         15  did -- the Commissioner shared with me her concerns

         16  about the retail and so I don't know --

         17                 MR. TRAVIS: About the retail?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: About the

         19  fact that you had cut down on the retail so I don't

         20  know --

         21                 MR. CARRIDI: The office.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Excuse me.

         23                 MR. CARRIDI: The office.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes, the

         25  office space.  Let me ask -- and I want to be clear
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          2  because the Community Board, in representing it's

          3  MOU of support, did not represent that it was

          4  supporting a 50 story building.  In fact, they had

          5  very great reservations about it and asked that you

          6  provide them with some sort of study that would

          7  represent some contextually and that has not been

          8  provided yet to me as per my request or to the

          9  Community Board to the best of my knowledge so I

         10  just want to be clear to my colleagues that the

         11  Community Board did not, does not support a 50 story

         12  building.  Okay, number one, number two, the other

         13  concern that I have that has been brought up is the

         14  fact that, and maybe you can answer this, that this

         15  is an example of spot zoning which is technically

         16  not allowed.

         17                 MR. TRAVIS: Right, I think, in fact,

         18  this would be spot zoning if you didn't have a

         19  appropriate planning rationale for why this site is

         20  different from other sites in the area and as we

         21  said before, this site has unique transit access, is

         22  at the intersection of two major streets is clearly

         23  significantly underutilized at the current time so

         24  we think there's very good planning rationale why

         25  this particular site, the C4- 7 which, is being
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          2  changed to a more appropriate zoning for that site

          3  and what I said is if you actually look at other

          4  sites around the City that have similar

          5  characteristics, they've actually been rezoned to an

          6  FAR of 12.  This is being rezoned to an FAR of 10 so

          7  we think there is very good evidence that this is

          8  the appropriate zoning for this site and in fact,

          9  Weston has been approved by City Planning for other

         10  sites next to major transit hubs at major arterials.

         11                 MR. CARRIDI: And if I may,

         12  Councilman, just suggest the 50 stories.  It is a

         13  mixed- use project.  It's a total of 38 stories.  In

         14  order to entice some of the Fortune 500 companies,

         15  if you will, to Harlem, you have to give a higher

         16  ceiling height to house the mechanicals and things

         17  like that and to give something a little special

         18  also to retail space typically wouldn't go for a ten

         19  story now.  Everything is being designed to attract

         20  retailers, approximately 16 feet so if you add the

         21  combination and also the catering space to give the

         22  ballrooms the double height and to house the large

         23  parties.  Our ballroom facility will house

         24  approximately 650 people so it will be the largest

         25  catering facility, where now a lot of the parties
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          2  are leaving Harlem and going to midtown to have

          3  their functions and in fact, we just met with one of

          4  your local caterers, Alhambra, yesterday and they

          5  have significant interest in leasing the catering

          6  facility and they're really excited about the

          7  location and the amount of people that can be served

          8  from the Harlem community instead of taking all

          9  those dollars out of the community and going to

         10  midtown as well as the hotel component.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The -- let me

         12  just be clear -- the eye in the community supportive

         13  of the Marriott proposal that includes all the other

         14  aspects of it and you keep talking about this

         15  Fortune 500, you know, thrust of your efforts and I

         16  should share with you, if you haven't heard this,

         17  that you know, the community is not simply entered

         18  in the Fortune 500s okay.  The community is a

         19  community that is also interested in the less

         20  fortunate 1000 and so it's a great concern that all

         21  you seem to be promoting is bringing up these

         22  Fortune 500s and that everything is being driven to

         23  accommodate their needs despite the fact that the

         24  community has represented a concern about it's needs

         25  which include the fact that though this may only be
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          2  what you call 38 stories, it, in fact, is the height

          3  of a 50 story building and it is therefore totally

          4  out of context with what's around it and may be a

          5  precedent that says to us "Councilman, if you're

          6  supporting something 50 stories over here, why won't

          7  you support something 50 stories over there?" So

          8  this becomes a slippery slope that we would have to

          9  address at a another point in time and I'm not sure

         10  if you're, if you're explanation of this spot zoning

         11  is the same as those other areas that you described

         12  where it was much higher.  This is one small area by

         13  comparison to the larger areas that you're talking

         14  about in terms of downtown Brooklyn.  Again, I just

         15  want to be clear, we are supportive of this type of

         16  a development with all due respect to your concerns

         17  about the maturity of the project, we have problems

         18  with a 50 story project that is out of context with

         19  what the community envisions as community- friendly

         20  and maybe putting us on a slippery slope of having

         21  to support similar type of developments down the

         22  road so I would hope that your insistence that it

         23  cannot change is just an emotional request from the

         24  perspective of an artist and not from the

         25  perspective of what's good for this neighborhood.
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          2                 MR. CARRIDI: Councilman, if I may

          3  address the Fortune 500 component? -- Question, we

          4  are obviously speaking to some Fortune 500 but also

          5  we are talking to some local Harlem residents about

          6  relocating their offices.  In fact, I think

          7  mentioned a new office, Don Togsville from Saratoga

          8  Capitol has committed to 10,000 square feet of

          9  office space.  He is a Harlem resident.  He is down

         10  on Wall Street now and he's looking to create an

         11  incubator type of environment to expand his

         12  investment banking, minority investment banking

         13  business into Harlem and he wants to basically be a

         14  trendsetter to bring or classify this as a Wall

         15  Street North concept.  Additionally, we're having

         16  significant conversations with a former President

         17  located in Harlem about relocating into our project

         18  also in conjunction with his, one of his associates,

         19  if you will, another investment bank about

         20  relocating into the facility and expanding their

         21  operation as well as other businesses that have

         22  expressed the idea of creating another incubator, an

         23  HQ type of environment which would allow local

         24  entrepreneurs to have office space with the support

         25  services so they can grow their businesses into
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          2  mature businesses so I believe we are addressing it

          3  but at the same token, we want to have something

          4  very special for Harlem and with all the latest and

          5  greatest that deserves to be in Harlem and we

          6  believe our design embodies this feeling and again,

          7  in a mixed- use project, with all due respect, you

          8  need varying slab heights to accommodate the mixed-

          9  uses and although the number is five hundred and

         10  some odd feet, it is only 38 stories and I respect

         11  what you're saying.  It may be the equivalent of 50

         12  stories if it's a straight residential project but

         13  in order to accompany all the various uses in the

         14  building, we need the extra space.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         16  very much, Mr. Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you

         18  gentlemen.

         19                 MR. CARRIDI: Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We will now

         21  proceed to the public hearing.  I will call

         22  alternating panels, one in opposition, one in favor.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Mr. Chairman,

         24  may I interject for a moment to suggest that the

         25  sponsors try to hang around or at least be
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          2  represented so that they can hear from the community

          3  some of the other concerns?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That is general

          5  practice, that they do hang around but I certainly

          6  ask that they would.  Thank you for mentioning it.

          7  First panel, we will take a panel in opposition and

          8  I will ask the Sergeant- at- Arms to wind the clock

          9  up.  Caroline Harris from Civitas, Daniel Perez from

         10  Civitas, how many chairs do we have up there? Four?

         11  Michael Adams.

         12                 MS. HARRIS: Good morning, should I

         13  start? --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes, please and

         15  it's good afternoon.  I know you've been here a

         16  while.

         17                 MS. HARRIS: Actually, it is this

         18  afternoon.  My name is Caroline Harris.  I'm counsel

         19  to Jenkens and Gilchrist Parker Chapin.  We

         20  represent Civitas, a community based, all volunteer

         21  organization of some 2,000 members who are concerned

         22  with urban planning, zoning and neighborhood issues

         23  affecting East Harlem and the Upper East Side.

         24  Civitas enthusiastically supports the recent and

         25  anticipated development activity in East Harlem and
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          2  Harlem.  It's been intimately involved with the

          3  rezoning efforts and the East Harlem rezoning and it

          4  continues to encourage growth by actively

          5  participating in the Department of City Planning's

          6  125th Street/River to River Study, a comprehensive

          7  planning initiative for the 125th Street Corridor.

          8  Thus, Civitas welcomes 1800 Park Avenue and it's

          9  proposed development of the Marriott Hotel into the

         10  neighborhood and believes that the duel goals of

         11  bringing a fine hotel to Harlem and sound planning

         12  may be achieved simultaneously.

         13                 I'm going to deviate from what I've

         14  written.  I will submit it. Now that I've heard the

         15  presentation, I realize there are some errors in

         16  what I've written and I will submit a revised

         17  version also but this at least you'll have in the

         18  record.

         19                 I'm really here to speak about spot

         20  zoning.  Mr. Travis, a former- I used to work with

         21  these gentlemen -- made the point that this is not

         22  spot zoning because this is the right zoning for

         23  this sight. That is not the correct inquiry when

         24  you're trying to identify whether spot zoning is

         25  occurring.  The question that's important to address
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          2  is whether the process is singling out one parcel of

          3  land for use classification totally different from

          4  the surrounding area is for the benefit of the owner

          5  of the property to the detriment of the people in

          6  the area around that property, whether it is

          7  compatible with the character of the neighborhood

          8  and the community.  Is it consistent with the

          9  comprehensive land- use plan and what are the

         10  recommendations of professional planning staff?

         11  Those are among the considerations.  They're not all

         12  of the considerations.  The economic benefit to the

         13  community does not relieve the legislative body of

         14  it's obligation to consider the proposed uses

         15  compatibility with the surrounding area and it's

         16  consistency with the comprehensive zoning plan.  It

         17  might well be true that there's a transportation hub

         18  at this location.  In fact, it is, but that issue of

         19  the appropriateness of rezoning either this block or

         20  a whole area would have to be taken into

         21  consideration with looking at the entire

         22  transportation hub, the different elements in the

         23  transportation hub, not only -- there's Metro-

         24  North, there's the subway, there's bus 125th Street

         25  and a plan would have to be developed that would be

                                                            142

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  appropriate for dealing with all of the

          3  transportation hub issues not isolating one parcel

          4  and saying "Oh, there's a transportation hub here so

          5  let's increase the FAR."

          6  Civitas' issue with this project is not the FAR in

          7  absolute terms. The issue here is height and in the

          8  context, as Councilperson Perkins so aptly pointed

          9  out, the height of this building is inappropriate

         10  for this context.  It is a single spot zoning that's

         11  allowing this height to go forward and there is no,

         12  okay, there's no comprehensive plan that it's

         13  consistent with.  There is the 125th Street/River to

         14  River Study that is not yet complete and this stands

         15  in separation as an ad hoc zoning measure

         16  contradictory to the idea of a comprehensive

         17  planning process which is going on. There are

         18  alternatives.  A C7, C4- 7a which would put a height

         19  restriction on this project could keep the same

         20  bulk, reconfigured but put a much lower ceiling,

         21  literally, on the project and make it more

         22  contextually appropriate and also be a bridge to

         23  what future zoning might happen in the areas.

         24  Alternatively, there could be a restrictive

         25  declaration placed on the property so that although
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          2  it's zoned at the higher density and higher height,

          3  in fact, it's not used at the higher height by the

          4  voluntary wish -- agreement of the developers.  Are

          5  there any questions about spot zoning?  I'll happily

          6  try to answer.  Will you excuse me?

          7                 MR. PEREZ: (Difficult to discern due

          8  to dialect.) My name is Daniel Perez and I just

          9  passed this statement around that I was going to

         10  make but she has made most of it by talking so I'm

         11  going to -- besides what I just gave you, I'm going

         12  to make sure that you put in on record, I also want

         13  to also include that I'm also a member of CB10 in

         14  Central Harlem and I'm also a member of the Task

         15  Force to Rezone 125th Street and an ex- housing

         16  specialist for Board 11.  When I got the information

         17  about this hotel build. It's something we've been

         18  asking for years in Harlem.  Yes, we need a hotel in

         19  Harlem so we don't have to go out of the area to

         20  spend our money and do whatever we have to do.  When

         21  you show something 50 floors in Harlem, people are

         22  horrified, when you see something like that.  We are

         23  used contextual zoning, we're used to beautiful

         24  buildings and we're use to low- rise buildings.  In

         25  fact, we are talking with the Planning Commission
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          2  about rezoning the whole Harlem community so they

          3  could build, even in the avenue, if you want to

          4  build, you can build no more than 12 floors high.

          5  That's how we feel about it, the community and the

          6  same size they are now three, four, five, six,

          7  whatever it is.  We interested (sic) in keeping our

          8  community low.  We're talking about the rezoning and

          9  you're talking about the rezoning of 125th Street

         10  which we haven't even started dealing with the

         11  zoning situation yet and you're going to put a

         12  building there which is the same amount as 50 floors

         13  and not only that but you're also asking to be

         14  rezoned C4- 7 which is the same as R10.  You're are

         15  destroying the whole Harlem community. I heard the

         16  Councilman say that you could look everywhere and

         17  you don't say that high building.  That's three

         18  strikes.  You could look to the whole Central Harlem

         19  and you won't see a building 50 floors even if you

         20  see the state building, it's way down away from

         21  there so this is, we have a problem with the

         22  rezoning.  Now, I check into some of the other

         23  rezoning situations because I was also Chair to

         24  Land- Use for Board 10 at one time, and we came out

         25  with a C4- 7a which is 21 floors.  We are talking
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          2  about 21 floors.  They're talking about 50.  Now the

          3  Planning Commission says that they have nothing, no

          4  kind of zoning between 50 and 21.  There's nothing

          5  there so maybe that's what we should do.  We should

          6  be trying to get some kind of zoning to deal from 21

          7  floors to 30 floors and just look at that and make

          8  that a zoning situation so when we start talking

          9  about rezoning 125th Street, we don't have to be

         10  looking at these big monsters.  If you see in the

         11  picture, the Metro- North looks like this compared

         12  to the building.  So I think that we could do a

         13  whole lot of things that we could bring a lot hotels

         14  in the area that we need and everything the

         15  community needs, it could be brought into the area

         16  but, you know, first we have to also make sure that

         17  you don't buy all the zoning area and the look of

         18  the community and this would be really a slap in the

         19  face to the community people if we go along with 50

         20  floors.  Thank you.

         21                 MR. ADAMS: Michael Henry Adams.  I'm

         22  the author of Harlem Lost and Found, an

         23  architectural and social history 1765 1915 and as a

         24  historian of Harlem's architecture, I'm very much

         25  opposed to this project as it's currently
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          2  configured.  It's difficult to argue against the

          3  benefits of jobs and economic development but I

          4  would submit to you that if this plan as currently

          5  outlined were to go forward, the developers would,

          6  in point of fact, not enhance the renaissance of

          7  Harlem, but they would be in danger of destroying

          8  what it is that they suggest they're trying to

          9  improve.  If the notion is that Harlem should become

         10  just like every other place in New York, well, this

         11  would be a fine project but Harlem is a distinct,

         12  unique place as special in it's way as is Paris and

         13  in the same way that all over Paris there've been

         14  restrictions on building heights, so too there ought

         15  to be in Harlem to preserve the special quality that

         16  people immediately recognize when they come there.

         17  This is the place where you can still see the sky in

         18  New York City and this project is just so totally

         19  out of context with anything that has existed

         20  historically in this community and people in Harlem

         21  have been aware of this problem for a long, long

         22  time when Adam Clayton Powell's State Office

         23  building was proposed and put forward by Governor

         24  Rockefeller.  The people of Harlem were

         25  overwhelmingly opposed to it.  Not only on account
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          2  of it's great bulk and height and how it was out of

          3  context with the surrounding area but because of all

          4  of the historical landmarks that it was going to

          5  destroy including Mishow's (phonetic) Bookstore

          6  which was one of the meeting places of Harlem

          7  intellectuals.  So it's important for us now to

          8  look, not just in the immediate years and for the

          9  immediate economic gain to be derived from this

         10  project, but to look way out toward the future of

         11  Harlem revived and what will Harlem be?  Will Harlem

         12  be a community Charleston or Savannah or Newport,

         13  where our heritage has been used as an engine to

         14  create a thriving portion of the city that attracts

         15  people from all around the world or will it be a

         16  place like Las Vegas, were everything that

         17  identifies that place as some place special and

         18  unique, has been destroyed and people come to a

         19  Marriott Hotel, not unlike a Marriott Hotel anywhere

         20  else and totally lose the specialness of the place

         21  that is Harlem because it's been swept away and

         22  homogenized and this Marriott Hotel has been allowed

         23  to become a precedent to transform Harlem, not into

         24  it's best self but into some place else entirely

         25  different.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next panel is in

          3  favor.  Sandra DeLeon, Calvin Martin, excuse me, Dr.

          4  Mannan, am I pronouncing it right?

          5                 MS. DELEON: Good afternoon,

          6  Committee, Councilman Perkins. My name is Sandra

          7  DeLeon and I work for the East Harlem Business

          8  Capitol Corporation.  We're a not- for- profit local

          9  development corporation with a mission to assist in

         10  the economic revitalization of East Harlem by

         11  providing loans and technical assistance to small

         12  businesses and entrepreneurs in the Community Board

         13  11 area.  We're also the designated administrators

         14  of the East Harlem Empire Zone whose purpose is to

         15  provide tax incentives and other benefits for

         16  certified businesses within the Empire Zone that

         17  makes investments and creates jobs in the zone.

         18  The Harlem Park project has our total support

         19  because it epitomizes what our mission and the

         20  purpose of the Empire Zone is about.  The Harlem

         21  Park project will serve as a catalyst to attract

         22  additional investment projects and other businesses

         23  thereby further assisting in the economic

         24  revitalization of the area.  The project will create

         25  1500 construction jobs and approximately 950
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          2  permanent jobs that will go a long way toward

          3  addressing the high unemployment in Community Board

          4  11.  The Five- Star Marriott Hotel at Harlem Park

          5  will be the first full service hotel in Harlem since

          6  1966 and the first ever in the East Harlem Community

          7  Board 11 area.  The project will develop office

          8  space for businesses seeking to house all or part of

          9  their operations in Harlem and Harlem Park will have

         10  conference space, catering facilities and health

         11  club and spa. These amenities will assure a steady

         12  stream of visitors to the area whose spending will

         13  spill over to other area businesses.  On behalf of

         14  the East Harlem Business Capitol Corporation and

         15  East Harlem's Empire Zone and also, and I'm

         16  deviating a little bit from what I have written, I

         17  also happen to be a life long resident of East

         18  Harlem, I urge this Committee to endorse this

         19  project.  Thank you.

         20                 MR. MARTIN: Good afternoon, I'm

         21  Calvin Martin, grand master of Prince All Masons in

         22  the State of New York and throughout the state we

         23  have about 77 lodges and 56 Eastern Star chapters,

         24  that's the women's auxiliary.  More than one third

         25  of our largest in chapters are located in Harlem at
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          2  our state headquarters 454 West 155th Street and

          3  more than a third of our membership reside in

          4  Harlem.  My organizations quite frequently have

          5  socials and conferences and on all occasions, we

          6  have to take those things outside of Harlem.  I just

          7  came back from Binghamton.  We're having an affair

          8  in November that has to be taken out to Queens.  So

          9  therefore, the dollars that we can spend where we

         10  live and where we operate often times are taken out

         11  of the community.  It's not circulated back into the

         12  community the way we would like for it to happen.

         13  I'm also a deacon at Convent Avenue Baptist Church

         14  where we have more than 3,500 members and we just

         15  celebrated our 60th anniversary.  Those affairs that

         16  could not be held at the church were again taken out

         17  of my community.  One was held downtown, the other

         18  was held in New Rochelle.  Moreover, I look at the

         19  job opportunities that will be presented for the

         20  people that I live with and work with everyday.  I

         21  think it's a tremendous advantage to be able to work

         22  in your community, spend your money in your

         23  community, not having it go out of the community.

         24  So I whole heartedly endorse this program.  It is

         25  something that is needed. I think it is wanted by
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          2  most of the community.  It cuts down on our

          3  traveling back and forth so there's no way that I

          4  think -- thus in it's totality the pluses far

          5  outweigh the minuses in my opinion.

          6                 DR. MANNAN: Good afternoon, my name

          7  is Dr. Miejib Mannan.  I'm executive director of

          8  Malcolm Shabazz Development Corporation which is the

          9  economic development arm of the Mosque Malcolm

         10  Shabazz on 116th Street.  I'm also a professor at

         11  the College of New Rochelle, Rosa Parks Campus where

         12  I'm resource faculty.  I teach a course called the

         13  History of Harlem.

         14                 I strongly, on behalf of the

         15  community that I represent, support this project

         16  because I believe Harlem deserves and needs this

         17  hotel for a number of reasons.  There's a blessing

         18  in the mixed- use aspect of this hotel, particularly

         19  not the fact that it's just a hotel but it's a

         20  commercial use, a commercial property that will

         21  generate businesses in the community and will also

         22  have a residential component.  I'm reminded of the

         23  world of the Hotel Theresa was started about 80

         24  years ago which was a part of the Harlem

         25  renaissance.  It supported the Harlem renaissance
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          2  and it was a prerequisite for that.  We have again a

          3  situation where we need this hotel space for the use

          4  of the community for it's banquets and special

          5  events.  But the most important point I can make

          6  here today is that, this is an important project

          7  because of the future of Harlem.  The family of New

          8  York is growing.  The family of Harlem is growing.

          9  There has always been a demographic renaissance

         10  before there has been a cultural renaissance and we

         11  have a demographic renaissance happening right now

         12  in Harlem.  We have Africans coming in record

         13  numbers.  Mexicans coming in record numbers and

         14  other groups coming and the City moving northward is

         15  projected by some experts that the population of

         16  Harlem may even double, as much as double with

         17  proper housing accommodations in 35 years.  There's

         18  certainly a need for it.  Our organization built

         19  six, 36 new apartments on 116th Street and we got

         20  6,000 applicants for those apartments.  The need is

         21  there.  39 stories is needed.  There's going to be

         22  more 39 stories in the next 35 years in Harlem as we

         23  grow because this is a community that's growing and

         24  the history of Harlem will not be a thing of the

         25  past, it will be a situation where people will own
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          2  their own businesses at this time and it will not

          3  become a ghetto again.  I'm encouraged by the

          4  commercial aspect of this project whereby we are

          5  encouraging businesses to come here and do business

          6  here.

          7                 I'm reminded also the opportunities

          8  for jobs that will be created here.  Not just jobs

          9  but careers at the Hotel Theresa, I recall that

         10  Charlie Rangel was a desk clerk.  I certainly

         11  suggest that he had to use a lot of politics at that

         12  job to make it work and there are future Charlie

         13  Rangels and future Council members that may work at

         14  this hotel and this project and I hope that we will

         15  be forward looking and not base our decisions on

         16  what will happen just in 2004 but what will happen

         17  in 2024 and 2034.  This is a growing community that

         18  needs this project and we need more of the same

         19  coming to Harlem.  Harlem deserves this growth and

         20  it's been a hundred years since we've had this type

         21  of opportunity to grow in Harlem as a community and

         22  I hope that you would support this.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me just

         25  make a --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me just

          4  first thank each and everyone of you for your

          5  testimony and to assure you that we are all on the

          6  same page when it comes to what we see as the value

          7  of this project and not only in the short term but

          8  in the long term for our community and I'm

          9  especially appreciative, Ms. DeLeon, of your long

         10  term involvement in the neighborhood and with the

         11  projects that you've done in conjunction with my

         12  office, so and I know the Lodge and their

         13  involvement in the community and we share some

         14  involvements as cancer survivors and other things in

         15  that nature and clearly, Malcolm Shabazz Mosque is

         16  an icon in Harlem and we appreciate the long term

         17  relationship that they've had with the community,

         18  but the fact of the matter is that 50 stories is too

         19  high okay and it is contrary to produce in division

         20  that you are sharing with us today, so I just want

         21  to be clear about that, that what we are trying to

         22  accomplish can be accomplished.  Everything that you

         23  are trying to accomplish in terms of potential

         24  catering opportunities, employment opportunities,

         25  business opportunities, economic development
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          2  opportunities, so on and so forth.  New elected

          3  officials emerging out of the opportunities that

          4  they get by working in there.  However you want to

          5  describe it, it can be done.  There's no question

          6  that that's what we want but there's a problem.

          7  When you go down the slippery slope of building in

          8  such a way that you set a precedent that will be

          9  contrary to the vision that you have, that you've

         10  shared with us today so that's the concern here.

         11  The concern here is there's a common vision for the

         12  Harlem/East Harlem community that all of us share,

         13  Board 11, Board 10, however you want to describe it

         14  and that vision includes us okay?  And we got to

         15  make sure that despite the demographics that we

         16  welcome in their change, that we embrace.  We,

         17  nevertheless, have a sense of community, okay?  A

         18  sense of community that represents a certain, like

         19  it was said, we can still see the sky from El Barrio

         20  and from Central Harlem.  I think we'd want our

         21  children to continue to see the sky.

         22                 DR. MANNAN: But I think same concern

         23  exists when the state office building was built so.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You know

         25  something, fortunately the zoning was such that it
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          2  did not allow for that to continue to happen and

          3  this is a giant leap above the state office

          4  building.  This is a, this is two state office

          5  buildings okay?

          6                 MR. TRAVIS: May I respond?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sure, if you want

          8  to respond.

          9                 MR. TRAVIS: With the prospect of the

         10  population of Harlem increasing 40 to 50 percent in

         11  the next 20 years and not knowing whether God is

         12  going to expand Harlem horizontally by having an

         13  island come up out of the Hudson, I think we have to

         14  go up rather than horizontally so it behooves us to

         15  look at going up in New York City with the

         16  population.  We can't build out.  We have to go up

         17  and this experience has taught me that has been in

         18  every city that has grown- Tokyo, Jakarta, all over

         19  the world and this is our time to go up in the

         20  world.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         22                 MS. DELEON: Just one comment.  I

         23  think that looking up at the sky is really important

         24  however I know for a fact that a lot of people are

         25  leaving East Harlem for where ever the jobs are and
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          2  that is simply because sky or no sky, they don't

          3  have the time to look at it because they're too busy

          4  looking for work.  That's just one thing.  I would

          5  hope that wiser heads than mine can come together

          6  and seek some kind of a compromise so that this

          7  project is accomplished.  That is supremely

          8  important and I, you know, you have to give a little

          9  somewhere okay?  But the project has to happen.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: That's what

         11  we're asking for.  Now we're told that there's no

         12  give.  It has matured to the point of no more give.

         13  You know, that's, but I'm not all in disagreement

         14  with you but let me just say two quick things.

         15  First of all, the Council recognized the

         16  unemployment problem that we've had and so we have a

         17  $10 million initiative, as you may know, to address

         18  that and I happen to be the Chairman of the working

         19  group that's looking into that so we're very

         20  sensitive to that.

         21  Number two, we're not talking about taking away the

         22  jobs.  Quite the opposite, I'm concerned that we're

         23  only getting 25 percent guarantee.  I'm concerned

         24  why are we only getting 25 percent guarantee when we

         25  should be getting at least a 50 percent guarantee so
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          2  if we're really concerned about negotiating an

          3  arrangement that sort of clearly identifies us as

          4  the beneficiaries of the employment opportunities,

          5  we're starting at 25, we should be starting at

          6  nothing less than 50 and growing beyond that.  Thank

          7  you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          9                 DR. MANNAN: I agree with that last

         10  point.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The next panel in

         12  opposition is, the last panel, is Cora Shelton and

         13  I'm not sure how to pronounce the last name based

         14  upon the writing but it's Raymond from AIA, Pulmey.

         15                 MS. SHELTON: My name is Cora Shelton,

         16  as you just said.  I want to thank you for listening

         17  to me.  I want to modify what my opposition.  I had

         18  no other space.  It should have had a third space

         19  because I'm not in opposition to this project.  I'm

         20  in opposition to the height of this project.  I am a

         21  member of Community Board 11.  I am the Chairperson

         22  of the Zoning Committee there and have been for some

         23  time.  I've been on the Board when I was appointed

         24  by Mr. Honorable Percy Sutton.  That's a long time.

         25  I know about the Theresa.  I know about all of these
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          2  other projects.  Right now, I'm just here to oppose

          3  the height of the building.  When Board 11 approved

          4  with modification, I don't know whether this group

          5  or anyone have came (sic) back to Community Board 11

          6  and said there have been modifications.  I'm just

          7  hearing today about 38 stories.  But I learned

          8  something a few years ago about zoning, what made me

          9  so interested in zoning when we had a building that

         10  was too tall and I also am a member of City Task,

         11  one of the original members, been there a long time.

         12    I've been living here in this community 60 years.

         13  In the same place for the last 55 years and I've

         14  been a member of the Community Board as I said, for

         15  a long time.  I am, don't want anyone to think that

         16  Cora Shelton would be against the project that will

         17  lead our community to a better place, but our

         18  community to a better place, not lead it to a better

         19  place that, those of us who live here, cannot, can

         20  no longer live here.  What's actually happening in

         21  East Harlem now. This hotel is so tall to the, I'm

         22  also on the Task Force across 125th Street.  This

         23  project across 125th Street, it's not doing anything

         24  now.  Once we started this, under the Planning

         25  Commissioners, once we started it and here comes the
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          2  hotel because I didn't know anything about it.  The

          3  hotel is supposed to be 31 stories and it was

          4  supposed to be something else.  At this time, I'm

          5  learning that the hotel is going to be, like, 50

          6  stories.  That was not disclosed at the meeting.  I

          7  was there having a fit as I usually do because when

          8  you get my age you know you can't talk as well as

          9  you might want to so then it goes into, you know,

         10  one of those old folks fits.  What I am saying now,

         11  I can -- if I have -- I don't have my college

         12  degrees but what I do have, I have a commitment

         13  degrees.  I have a commitment to Community Board 11.

         14    I have a commitment to other organizations.  I had

         15  a commitment to the community school board.  I was

         16  the only female and the only minority on Community

         17  School Board 2.  I never missed a meeting and I have

         18  a lot of diplomas.  I never -- on my wall, in my box

         19   -- I have never, I pride myself, I pride myself

         20  that no one sitting here can say they love East

         21  Harlem more than I do and put themselves -- I'm not

         22  working now but when I was working, I would get off

         23  my job to come to hearings at the very hall on

         24  items.  What I'm going to say, I'm not against the

         25  hotel but I am against the height of the hotel.
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          2  Thank you very much

          3                 MR. PLUMEY: Yes, good afternoon, my

          4  name is Raymond Plumey.  I'm an architect and a city

          5  planner and a preservationist. I'm a resident of

          6  East Harlem.  I have my practice in East Harlem. I'm

          7  also a Board member of Civitas and Chair of the

          8  Zoning Committee of Civitas.  I'm also a Board

          9  member of the East Harlem Historical Organization

         10  and a Board member of the Business and Residence

         11  Alliance of East Harlem.  All of these organizations

         12  have opposed this project in it's present form.

         13  Besides my testimony, I'd like to attach two letters

         14  which I've given you a letter from Landmark West in

         15  opposition to this application and a letter from the

         16  Municipal Arts Society also in opposition, in

         17  opposition to this project.  I am in support of this

         18  project but not in it's present form.  I feel that

         19  it will set a dangerous precedent for East Harlem.

         20  The idea of proposing a project that was 550 feet

         21  and now is 518 feet and was reduced from 42 stories

         22  to 38 stories, what I want you to do is picture

         23  that.  50 stories, the Schomburg Plaza Apartments at

         24  110 Street and Fifth Avenue are 35 stories, add 20

         25  stories to that and that's the height of this
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          2  project.  If you look at Citicorp on 53rd Street and

          3  Citicorp in Queens, that's the height of this

          4  project.  So it is -- and also, it's about a third

          5  the height of the Empire State Building, a third so

          6  in terms of bulk, it's huge.

          7  With respect to meaningful employment, I have been

          8  practicing architecture in East Harlem for at least

          9  20 years in non- union projects and in union

         10  projects.  The idea that East Harlem residents are

         11  going to participate in this project, in a union

         12  project, is not real.  That will never happen unless

         13  the unions have an agreement with the developer and

         14  with the community board that they will take on

         15  these workers.  I have been on too many projects

         16  where the unemployment rate in East Harlem is 25

         17  percent for African- Americans and for Latinos, you

         18  know, is like 15 percent and they do not get any of

         19  the jobs.

         20  With respect to the issue of spot zoning, according

         21  to the Center for Urban Policy Research, this is

         22  spot zoning and spot zoning says, "it's rezoning of

         23  a lot or a parcel to benefit an owner for a use

         24  incompatible with surrounding uses and not for the

         25  purpose or effect of furthering a comprehensive
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          2  zoning plan."  That is the definition of spot

          3  zoning.

          4  Just last year, as a member of Civitas, I began

          5  participation in the East River to Hudson

          6  River/125th Street Study.  To date, that study is

          7  not complete.  It is not expected to be completed

          8  until 2005.  One of the things that we will be

          9  addressing in that study is zoning and urban design

         10  issues so I think it's a little too premature to

         11  have this application come forth without that

         12  comprehensive zoning study being completed.  I did

         13  propose a different option.  If the developer is

         14  concerned about bulk and FAR which they are, a C4- 7

         15  which is the application that they're asking for, is

         16  an FAR of 10.  However, a C4- 7a, it's a contextual

         17  district and that is also an FAR of 10 as well so

         18  it's the same floor area.  The only difference is

         19  that instead of 55 stories, it's 21 stories so it

         20  would be in context with the Theresa Hotel and with

         21  the Harlem State Office Building.

         22  Just last year, the City Council passed a rezoning

         23  of 50 blocks in East Harlem so this to me is a step

         24  backwards.  Of all the, you know, progressive

         25  thinking that we have been going through, just in
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          2  context of other buildings in the neighborhood,

          3  Tieno Towers (phonetic) is 35 stories, Schomburg

          4  Plaza is 35 stories and 1199 Plaza Apartments is 32

          5  stories so add 20 stories to all of those buildings

          6  and this the height of the project.  I do support

          7  this project but as a C4- 7a zoning district.  Thank

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Luis Falando,

         10  Falundo and Paul Quintero.

         11                 MR. FALUNDO: (Difficult to discern

         12  due to dialect in language.)  Okay, good afternoon

         13  panel, thank you for this opportunity.  My name is

         14  Luis Falundo.  I'm an architect and a city planner.

         15  Everything has been said today about Harlem Park and

         16  I'm here to speak on behalf of the project.  I am

         17  also a community activist -- in the community.  I

         18  also work for the City of New York Housing but I

         19  want to just bring something different just to give

         20  some perspective of why this is important and I'm

         21  going to do it as if I was going to be 20 years

         22  younger when I immigrated as a Dominican from the

         23  Dominican Republic to start architecture in New York

         24  and became a city planner too.  One of the things

         25  that I noticed immediately when I arrived was like
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          2  why the City allocated so much on one side and not

          3  on others which is what came to be the place within

          4  two cities.  There was a city that was very wealthy,

          5  very strong, growing.  There was the other city that

          6  nobody saw, the workers, the immigrants.  The

          7  problem is that since 1960s, after the experience

          8  that we had with Robert Moses, we lost the sense of

          9  regional planning and we forgot about the regional

         10  city and we forgot about the neighborhoods.  Today,

         11  we should have been in a position that we could

         12  compete with several places in downtown Manhattan

         13  like Brooklyn is doing today, like Hoboken is doing

         14  today originally.  What I think is that we are

         15  afraid.  We are afraid to bring a project of this

         16  magnitude because it's too big, too far from the

         17  time it's supposed to happen.  We should have had

         18  more buildings, -- more people, giving more job

         19  opportunities, bringing more opportunity to business

         20  to grow, not to have businesses on the first ground

         21  floor.  Today, Harlem Park seems big.  What I think

         22  that the contextual on this pop planning because the

         23  initiative came first as a developing the building

         24  and the planning is coming later but we are 60 years

         25  late on the process.  I mean 54 years on the process
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          2  of having a master plan who could preserve the

          3  rightful housing, the intimacy of the neighborhood,

          4  of Harlem historically, at the same time that we co-

          5  propose areas for city development. New York is

          6  growing northward.  Nobody is going to stop it.

          7  Demographic is going to change in Harlem as well as

          8  Washington Heights and if you think that the problem

          9  in Harlem is big, Washington Heights is even bigger

         10  because we don't have small houses, low density that

         11  we can preserve historically so we got to start

         12  thinking of "yes, our neighborhoods in northern

         13  Manhattan are going to have to grow".  We're going

         14  to have to grow.  We're going to have to come to the

         15  conclusion that we need these kinds of projects to

         16  fulfill economic development, to fulfill

         17  opportunities, to allow our people to have jobs that

         18  can reign the salaries to buy the properties that

         19  they can not be displaced by gentrification due to

         20  the movement of workers from downtown into our

         21  neighborhoods which is going to happen anyway and

         22  sooner or later, we're going to be saying that we --

         23  Central Park.  There was a neighborhood of African-

         24  Americans in Central Park, today is used by the rich

         25  and wealthy so I'm talking on behalf of the project.
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          2    I think that it's a meeting of the mind.  The

          3  project is right.  We got to go and do the planning

          4  and we should plan big because we need it.  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: -- To make a

          7  comment on some of the things that have been said

          8  and that'll close the hearing.

          9                 MR. SAMPSON: The 25 percent --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Please --

         11                 MR. SAMPSON: Excuse me, yes. Dave

         12  Sampson, Senior Vice President, Diversity

         13  Initiatives of Marriott International. The 25

         14  percent, Councilman, that you referenced is for

         15  minority and women business enterprises.  That's the

         16  goal we established.  We established a 51 percent

         17  goal from a hiring standpoint.  In addition to that,

         18  we established 35 percent minority management

         19  participation, 35 percent minimum female in

         20  management also.  Those are not thresholds.  Those

         21  are just goals so if we can exceed those numbers, we

         22  will definitely try to do that but I'd be remiss if

         23  I didn't clarify, it's 15 percent minority

         24  purchasing, 10 percent for women businesses so 25

         25  percent is dealing with procurement.  I just want to
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          2  be very clear with that.  That's it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  If

          4  there's nobody else signed up to speak, that'll

          5  close the public hearing on this item.  The vote

          6  will be taken Thursday morning and this meeting of

          7  the Sub- Committee of Zoning and Franchises is

          8  recessed until Thursday morning at 9:30.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 2:05 p.m.)
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